
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
Agenda 

 

Wednesday 18 March 2020 at 6.00 pm 
Meeting Room 2 (2nd Floor) - 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
Vanessa Andreae - H&F Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice-Chair) 

Dr James Cavanagh – Chair of the Governing Body, H&F Clinical Commissioning Group 

Councillor Ben Coleman - Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care (Chair) 

Councillor Adam Connell - Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform 

Janet Cree - H&F Clinical Commissioning Group 

Councillor Larry Culhane - Cabinet Member for Children and Education 

Toby Hyde – Deputy Director of Transformation, Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust 

Dr Nicola Lang - Acting Director of Public Health and Consultant in Public Health Medicine 

Jacqui McShannon - Director of Children’s Services 

Lisa Redfern – Strategic Director of Social Care and Public Services Reform 

Glendine Shepherd - Head of Housing Solutions 

Sue Spiller - Chief Executive Officer, SOBUS 

Nadia Taylor - Healthwatch Representative 

 

Nominated Deputy Member 

Councillor Patricia Quigley – Assistant to the Cabinet Member Health and Adult Social 

Care 

Councillor Lucy Richardson, Chair, Health, Inclusion and Social Care Policy and 

Accountability Committee 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Bathsheba Mall 

Committee Coordinator 

Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 5758 / 07776672816 

 E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk 

Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A hearing loop is available and the 
building has disabled access. 

 
Date Issued: 10 March 2020 

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
Agenda 

Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES AND ACTIONS  4 - 12 

 (a) To approve as an accurate record and the Chair to sign the 

minutes of the meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Board held on  

9 September 2019; and 

(b) To note the outstanding actions. 

 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Member of the Board, or any other member present in the meeting 

has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether or not it 

is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other significant 

interest which they consider should be declared in the public interest, 

they should declare the existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest as 

defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the interest at the 

commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it 

becomes apparent. 

 

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 

attendance and speak, any Member with a disclosable pecuniary 

interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 

evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Member must then 

withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is discussed 

and any vote taken.  

 

Where members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 

speak, then the Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 

withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 

Members who have declared other significant interests should also 

withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 

in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 

give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 

 

Members are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 

dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 

and Standards Committee.   

 

 

4.   HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEMBERSHIP APPOINTMENTS   

 

 To note and welcome new appointments to the board. 

 

 



5.   CORONOVIRUS (COVID 19) UPDATE  
 

To report the Council’s preparations and contingency planning in 

response to Covid 19. 

 

Verbal 

6.   COMMUNITY H&F CCG AND ICHT PHYSIOTHERAPY SERVICES 

UPDATE  
 

This report provides an update on both the current community 

physiotherapy provision in Hammersmith and Fulham and future 

opportunities for physiotherapy within Primary Care Networks (PCNs). 

 

13 - 27 

7.   BUSINESS INFORMATION UPDATE  
 

This report demonstrates the work of the Councils Business Intelligence 

Unit in utilising data and key metrics to evidence and inform the 

development and provision of targeted and resident focused services. 

 

28 - 32 

8.   CCG COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS 2020-2021  
 

This report provides details on the North West London Commissioning 

Intentions (Appendix A) and the local Hammersmith and Fulham 

Commissioning Intentions (Appendix B). Appendix C provides a snap 

shot of the H&F ICP programme. 

 

33 - 74 

9.   NWL AMALGAMATION UPDATE  
 

The CCG will provide an update regarding plans for the amalgamation 

of North West London CCGs. 

 

Verbal 

10.   WORK PROGRAMME   

  

The Board is requested to consider the items within the proposed work 

programme and suggest any amendments or additional topics to be 

included in the future.  

 

 

11.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 

 

12.   DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS   

  

The Board is asked to note that the dates of the meetings scheduled for 

the municipal year 2020/2021 are as follows:  
 

Monday, 29 June 2020 

Wednesday, 30 September 2020 

Wednesday, 2 December 2020 

Monday, 8 February 2021 

Wednesday, 21 April 2021 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.   
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
Minutes 

 

Monday 9 September 2019 
 
 

 
 

 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members:  
Vanessa Andreae, H&F CCG 
Councillors Ben Coleman (Chair) 
Janet Cree, H&F CCG 
Anita Parkin, Director of Public Health 
Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director of Social Care 
Sue Spiller, Chief Executive Officer, SOBUS 
 
Nominated Deputies Councillors:  
 
Lucy Richardson 
 
Nominated Representatives: 
 
Melia Simone, Head of Homeless Prevention Assessment 
Keith Mallinson, Healthwatch 
 
Officers: Jo Baty, Assistant Director Mental Health LD Provider; Prakash 
Daryanani, Head of Finance, ASC; Linda Jackson, Assistant Director, ASC; CCGs; 
Olivia Clymer, Chief Executive Officer, Healthwatch; Dr Robert McLaren, Primary 
Care Network (Park Medical Centre); John Pullin, H&F CCG; and Sue Roostan, 
Deputy Managing Director, H&F CCG. 

 
10. MINUTES AND ACTIONS  

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2019 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
 
ACTIONS AND MATTERS ARISING 
 
Janet Cree provided a brief update on the CCG Governing Body 
consideration of the decision of the CCGs to merge.  A paper would be 
considered by the Council’s Health, Inclusion and Social Care Policy and 
Accountability Committee (HISPAC) at their meeting on 11 September 2019.  
The recommendation was to defer the merger and aim to work towards 
implementation in April 2021.  The transition year would be used to plan and 
ensure that the requirements of the NHS LTP were met.  
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor Coleman welcomed and supported the recommendation but 
sought further clarification about the specific details. The decision had been 
deferred and he enquired what the outcome would be if the CCGs were not 
ready to merge in April 2021. Janet Cree outlined that the deferred merger 
reflected an aspiration to merge and was optimistic that it would go ahead 
although she acknowledged that she did not know what would happen if the 
CCGs decided against a merger. An assurance framework would be 
established with agreed measures to identify the relevant issues to be 
considered. Vanessa Andreae added that there were clear governance 
structures to be put in place and that would need to be agreed by a 
membership vote throughout the North West London CGGs.  It was noted 
that this would be further discussed at HISPAC. 
 

11. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Patricia Quigley and 
Larry Culhane; and Dr James Cavanagh, Steve Miley, Glendine Shepherd 
and Nadia Taylor.  
 

12. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

13. BETTER CARE FUND  
 
Linda Jackson and Sue Roostan outlined the background work undertaken on 
the Better Care Fund (BCF).  There were several things that the CCG and the 
Council were keen to deliver in partnership with primary care preventing 
people from going into hospital. Paragraph 1.3 was clarified as referring to a 
“draft” local proposal.  Work had commenced on the developing the range of 
services deliverable by working in partnership.  The spend on this would be 
further monitored and a paper provided to a future Board meeting. A large 
piece of work on co-production would be undertaken, together with a review 
of carers, understanding the evaluation of carers in the context of the spend.  
Winter funding had also been received and Linda Jackson explained that they 
would be working with colleagues on how this would be applied.   
 

ACTON: Paper on the BCG to be provided to a future Board meeting 
 
Sue Spiller enquired what had been funded and utilised in the past two years.  
Prakash Daryanani explained that the plan was divided into three sections 
and supported a range of services.  There were CCG delivered services such 
as the Community Independent Service. The CCG also was the lead 
commissioner with the local authority, for example, the joint equipment 
contract (accommodation).   
 
Sue Spiller asked whether a trend in demand for care services could be 
identified and Lisa Redfern agreed to provide available data. Sue Roostan 
added that it had been possible to identify co-production outcomes in terms of 
what could be delivered for residents.  Lisa Redfern explained that due to the 
late provision of guidance in July (it had been expected in May) had 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

prevented more timely consideration by the Board. Sue Roostan explained 
that the requirements to be satisfied formed part of four national conditions 
generated by the Department of Health (the metrics of which were set out in 
page 6 of the Supplementary Agenda). 
 
Keith Mallinson commented that there was no reference to mental health and 
enquired if any work on this was planned. It was clarified that there was 
reference to delayed discharges on mental health which was included within 
the metrics, together with mental health services as part of the BCF and that 
the Council was performance measured on this. The next deadline to be 
aware of was 27 September 2019 and it was noted that some decisions 
would have to be taken outside the Board.  The response template was to be 
completed by 20 September 2019 and the Chair of the Board and H&F CCG 
will be invited to sign off.  
 

ACTION: BCF Plan was agreed. Chair of the Board and H&F CCG may 
sign off final template outside the meeting. 

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report was noted by the Board 
 

14. PRIMARY CARE NETWORK  
 
Janet Cree, a colleague from H&F CCG and Dr McLaren provided a brief 
overview of primary care networks (PCN) and how five PCNs would be 
configured in Hammersmith and Fulham. The concept of PCNs was 
described as a group of GP practices working together to provide population 
healthcare. This was not a new concept but offered formalised, structured and 
developed links within the context of wider changes to GP contracts.   
 
The five-year NHS LTP was issued in January 2019 and the direct enhanced 
service (DES) timeline extended to March 2019. Considerable work had been 
undertaken with GP practices to obtain the best provision to meet the needs 
of residents.  The PCN structure had been formally agreed and PCNs 
practices had signed up to it in addition to their core GP contracts and the 
DES. This was envisaged as a group of practices delivering a group of 
services for a portion of the population.  The network DES would receive 
funding to appoint directors and offer extended healthcare access across the 
population from 1st July.  
 
Details had not yet been provided and in April 2020 there would also be a 
requirement for each of the PCNs to deliver on the specifications.  The PCNs 
would deliver a range of services provided by health professionals working 
alongside the GP Federation.  The services would be wide ranging with a 
significant impact and would be mobilised as quickly as possible. 
 
Councillor Coleman enquired about social prescribing and it was explained 
that work was ongoing to recruit social prescribing link workers for each of the 
three PCNs.  The CCG would also be providing training to Patient and Public 
Involvement (PPI) groups.  Meetings with groups would be held at network 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

level and working with them was a priority for the CCG.  This was a big 
change in the way in which things were organised but there was a 
requirement to produce plans in a very short time.  It was important to 
understand what it was that PCNs were required to deliver and the 
anticipated journey.  Some additional investment was to be provided to 
enable clinical delivery going forward.   
 
The role of clinical directors and their specific role would be key in developing 
the foundations of PCNs.  The five PCNs for Hammersmith and Fulham 
would include GP At Hand, each covering between 30,000 and 70, 000 
patients.  With reference to GP At Hand, it was stated that from the CCG 
perspective, the aim was to respond and support patients that were part of 
the GP At Hand network (approximately 71,000), even though they did not all 
meet criteria of placed based commissioning. This would have to be further 
considered going forward as it involved a significant number of patients of 
which only 17, 000 were resident within the Borough.  
 
Councillor Richardson enquired what would be different following the 
introductions of PCNs and the potential impact on the day to day provision of 
health services.  Dr McLaren was unsure if he could explain this fully.  There 
were huge challenges to be addressed with insufficient time or resources.  
Excellent directors had been appointed and he was hopeful that they could 
adapt these roles to their professional, clinical commitments.  The Federation 
was to deliver the PCN agenda and would collaborate to ensure that they 
work efficiently but the PCN was in the early days of implementation. The 
main area of work was around social prescribing and plans to submit a bit to 
Macmillan fund were in train.   
 
Councillor Coleman was encouraged by the increased number of social 
prescribing link workers and was keen to support this working with GPs and 
the PCNs.   
 
Keith Mallinson welcomed the report and the support being offered to PPI 
groups referenced on page 66 of the Agenda pack being considered at a 
network level.  Healthwatch also welcomed the opportunity to be involved in 
the PPI offer and Janet Cree suggested that he contact Bethany Golding who 
was a key part of this work.  
 
Councillor Richardson welcomed the work on integrated care and enquired if 
there would be an opportunity to scrutinise the PCNs, given the time and 
resourcing issue.  Janet Cree confirmed that PCNs would be discussed in 
more detailed at the forthcoming HISPAC meeting.  The plans for the PCN 
were evolving and developing.  It was important to identify the measurable 
aspects, whether they were achieving intended aims and objectives.  It was 
envisaged that this would form part of the scrutiny process but not 
immediately. 
 
Sue Spiller expressed her interest in the planned engagement and 
involvement with the third sector.  These were small, well placed 
organisations that were well placed for engaging with local communities and 
she was keen to understand how SOBUS could support work on social 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

prescribing and how this could be facilitated, encouraged and supported. 
Janet Cree responded that there was an opportunity to do this through the 
integrated care partnership.   
 
Councillor Coleman asked that if the aim was to signpost residents to what 
was available then the third sector would need to respond.  He asked if the 
CCG would support the third sector through investment or additional 
resources.  Janet Cree responded that from a partnership perspective the 
CCG also worked with other organisations and that if there was to be a shift in 
resources this would need to be included in the work programme and be 
further discussed. There was a lack of clarity currently within primary care as 
to what could be provided by the third sector and it was hoped that this could 
be addressed through the work on social prescribing and improving the 
interface with the third sector.  
 
  Sue Spiller concurred that it was not just a matter of funding but that it would 
take time to make the shift in perspective which will attract better resources.  
However, understanding how this would work together in practice was 
complicated.  There was a need to balance existing provision and adjust 
offers accordingly through the PCN.  Vanessa Andreae added that this was 
an excellent opportunity to have the involvement of the third sector.  The DES 
was about widening the scope of the offer and highlighted what else may be 
on offer in the community.  The information and communication about this 
needed to be correct and a local conversation about the PCNs was essential, 
for example, the third sector being represented on PCN boards, 
acknowledging that there were different resident demographic profiles in 
different geographical parts of the Borough.   
 
Councillor Richardson asked Dr McLaren about his view on the changes 
given how hard GPs currently worked and the views of his GP colleagues. He 
explained that the mood was positive with some practices anxious about 
working more closely together and what this might mean.  Generally, there 
was a sense that practices were going to have to rely on PCN income to 
survive.   
 
Councillor Coleman enquired whether the aim was to replace contracts.  
Janet Cree responded that there would be two elements: a core contract, and 
then in addition, the PCN DES which was growing in scope.  Most of the work 
was to potentially shift resources to becoming more population based. It was 
confirmed that there would be 72 PCNs across London and that it would be 
the same process from everyone as they would all be responding to the need 
to align with the requirements of the integrated care system (ICS) level 
organisation.  These would have a bigger footprint across all the boroughs 
and there would be 55 ICS across the country. 
 
 
Councillor Coleman commented on the CCG support for the merger and 
observed that the intentions outlined by Mark Easton (Accountable Officer, 
NWL Collaboration of CCGs) were unclear, bringing together many different 
elements at the same time.  Janet Cree replied that the merger of the CCGs 
was about how commissioning staff were organised within the borough, 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

finance and office administration, and that part of this was about setting up 
the PCNs.  This was the part that was also affected by the merger but the 
staff supporting PCNs and GPs remained in place and this would not alter.  
 
It was confirmed that the PCNs were evolving and that further development 
would be undertaken once the specification had been provided and that this 
would have a long-term impact.  There would be seven specifications in total, 
five of which would be in place by April 2019 and two further ones to follow by 
2021. Janet Cree added that the CCG was also commissioning services 
across the Borough and was that this already included in part of the work 
being undertaken.  It was noted that setting up the PCNs in themselves was 
not enough which was why there was a need for the NWL merger to be in 
place to provide an overarching infrastructure in the form of an ICS.  The LTP 
commissioned an eight-borough delivery model and the merger was 
happening because of the expectation that the CCGs would align with the ICS 
for logistical reasons.  The merger therefore, was the delivery vehicle for 
commissioning intentions.  
 
 Lisa Redfern commented that it was difficult to understand the whole system, 
particularly given the variation in terminology and the way this had evolved.  
Janet Cree confirmed that there was a plan about how this would be delivered 
and acknowledged that there had been a mixture and overlap of terminology, 
both old and new. The STP no longer existed and the ICS was current.  The 
five parts of the STP also no longer existed. 
 
One of the items expected to be discussed at HISPAC would articulate how 
the local authority could influence and shape outputs required to facilitate 
delivery of the LTP.  Dr McLaren (as a clinical director) reported that practices 
were generally positive about the change and saw potential improvements in 
the way primary healthcare was offered in terms of the support they might 
receive.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Board noted the report. 
 

15. DRAFT CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE WITH SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND) JOINT STRATEGIC 
NEEDS ASSESSMENT (JSNA) REPORT 
 
Jo Baty presented the report on behalf of Mandy Lawson, Assistant Director 
of SEND. The JNSA (Joint Strategic Needs Assessment) was formulated and 
published in 2017, just as the Council left the shared services arrangement.    
It was reported that the outline data was broadly the same with 16% of the 
population with special educational needs (SEN).  
 It was difficult to capture data due to missing information and difficulties in 
drawing comparisons due to the differences in cohorts.   
 
In terms of speech, language and communication needs it was important to 
note that the way in which schools captured SEN data was based on 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

presented need. For example, a child with SEN may be autistic, with mental 
health issues and physical disabilities, so the data was one-dimensional.   
62%* of EHC (educational health care plans) were conducted in 2018, with 
only 8 not carried out.  The data was significant and one that the service was 
very proud of.  This was highlighted in the inspection report and indicated a 
huge improvement.   
 

ACTION: *Exact data about ECH plans to be circulated. 
 
It was explained that the relationship with the CCG was not as well embedded 
as it could have been at the time, but the inspection report identified a strong 
working relationship with the CCG and parents, so this was also welcome 
news.  There was also an improved local offer accessible on the Council 
website for 0-25-years SEND.  A young person had just been appointed to 
lead work on co-production to co-produce a SEND pathway.  There was a 
large transition team in place, appointed in line with the transition report 
recommendations.  This had been in place for one year but there was 
considerable progress to be made.  In terms of post 16 pathways, it was 
reported that they were working with West London College to develop these 
in more detail.   
 
There was a focus on early intervention and prevention, mental health 
wellbeing and joint working with CCG colleagues.  They were also 
considering how to fund mental health pathways and how this work could 
properly support young people at risk.  The speech and language SEND team 
was well established and further information about this was available. There 
were some excellent special schools in the Borough, and it would be 
interesting to identify if SEND arose within the local cohort or was imported, 
with many those with SEND moving into the area attracted by the local offer. 
On transitioning to a sovereign service, Jo Baty highlighted the need for more 
data and research, and they were fortunate to now have in place a team that 
offered a high standard of business intelligence.   
 
Keith Mallinson asked how it would be possible to identify those with SEND in 
main stream schools as it was difficult to do this.  Jo Baty explained that they 
worked with teachers and the wider education service.  It was anticipated that 
a child may not meet the EHC threshold but may still have SEND 
requirements.  It was confirmed that they were working to develop this further 
and welcomed the fact that experienced and committed staff had been 
attracted to working in the borough because of the innovative transitions and 
SEND collective approach to services.  
 
It was noted that continuity of care for a child with SEN was essential. Some 
parents did not see the value of coming to a GP practice with provision was 
made in a special school (if the child was enrolled in one).   
It was important that the child was able to see the same GP or medical 
professional at the same practice so that they are familiar with both 
professionals and the surrounding environment.   
 
Jo Baty reported that a transitions conference was being organised by 
Parents Active. Alison Markwell had made a huge impact both pre and post 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

inspection and this had helped refine the way the service worked.  Vanessa 
Andreae acknowledged that there remained difficulties in ensuring continuity 
of care, for example, ensuring long enough appointment time slots that could 
accommodate unintended late attendance.  
 
The CCG had undertaken many workshops on how to deliver care to 
vulnerable patients and had worked with SEND colleagues to refine this.  
Councillor Richardson highlighted that training should be made available to 
GP to help them communicate with vulnerable patients as this would help 
encourage take up at surgeries. Vanessa Andreae confirmed that this was not 
generally monitored but there had been a trajectory of improvement which 
she had noted through her work with five strong practices.   
 
With reference to data on page 5 of the report, clarification was sought about 
the number of those seeking an EHC plan and how many in the Borough 
already had one in place, highlighting the concern that parents may not be 
aware that their child might require an EHC plan.  Lisa Redfern assured the 
Board that take up within the Borough was high.  The Council worked closely 
with organisations such as Parents Active, undertook advocacy and support 
work and had received significant, positive feedback as a result.   
 
Jo Baty confirmed that the data on page 5 referred to children aged 3 and 4, 
and acknowledged that this was low, but the Borough had a significantly high 
number of children with EHC plans. The statutory time frame in which an EHC 
was required to be completed was a critical element, as was the number of 
children who were eligible.  This could potentially be cross referenced with the 
data held by GP practices.  
 
Sue Spiller recounted how a vulnerable Somalian child within the criminal 
justice system had been targeted by gangs. The children were initially 
befriended (“mate” crime) and the family had struggled with trying to persuade 
police that the child had been a victim and not the perpetrator.  
 
 Lisa Redfern commented that in terms of renegotiating the new CLCH 
contract, it was important that performance on Learning disability Health 
checks was improved to above 90% completed. 
 
It was confirmed by Anita Parkin that the next expected update for the JNSA 
was within five years.  It would be helpful to consider specific pieces of work 
and plan priorities so that they corresponded to expected outcomes.  It was 
also necessary to demonstrate how this would inform policy and it would be 
helpful for the Board to understand how this was done. A six-month update 
would be provided to the Board and it was agreed that CLCH would be invited 
to contribute to further discussions about this and learning-disabled health 
checks. 
 Vanessa Andreae pointed out that learning disabled health checks were 
primarily conducted by primary care so there was an issue around access to 
patient records because of the lack of integration between information 
technology systems.   
 

Page 11



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

In welcoming this encouraging report and drawing the discussion to a close, 
Councillor Coleman supported Councillor Richardson’s view that it was often 
difficult for a young person to access GP care and that it was important that 
barriers to accessing care be carefully explored and identified.  There was a 
similar point about the difficulties for children with SEN in accessing main 
stream schools.  Councillor Coleman recognised that this required further 
work to understand how the Council could be more effective and asked that 
this also be explored in the six-month report.  
 

ACTION: JNSA update report to be provided in six months (May/June 
2020), to include input from CLCH who would be invited to participate. 

ACTION: Details about the conference on autism to be circulated to 
Board members 

 
16. WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Councillor Coleman referred Board members to a piece reported in the 
Guardian newspaper regarding the CCG merger and how this had been 
postponed and delayed to April 2021.  He expressed concern that the 
recommendation to merge would be rushed without full consideration and 
more information was required in order to understand the changes being 
sought.  
 
Vanessa Andreae commented that this was within the remit of the JHOSC 
(Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee) and that it was reasonable 
for the NWL Collaboration of CCGs to be called to account so that the output 
can then be locally driven.  She also suggested that it would be helpful to 
identify how the social inclusion and loneliness (SIL) strategy linked in with 
the evolution of PCNs.  Councillor Coleman welcomed this and asked that 
officers identify how SIL could be addressed in all future reports, to be 
included at the beginning of each report.  
 

ACTION: Vanessa Andreae to seek further details about the merger 
recommendation 

 
17. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
 The date of the next meeting was noted as Wednesday, 11 November 2019. 
 

Meeting started: 6.15pm 
Meeting ended: 8.40pm  

 
 

Chair   

 
 

Contact officer: Bathsheba Mall 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 5758 / 07776 672816 
 E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk 

Page 12



1  

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
Report to:    Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date:  18/03/20 
 
Subject: Physiotherapy Update – Community and Imperial 
 
Report of: Hammersmith & Fulham Clinical Commissioning Group and Imperial College 

Healthcare NHS Trust 
 
Responsible Directors: Janet Cree, Managing Director Hammersmith and Fulham 
Clinical Commissioning Group and Anna Bokobza, Integrated Care Programme 
Director, ICHT 
 
Summary 
 
This paper has two component parts. From a community perspective it provides an 
update on both the current community physiotherapy provision in Hammersmith and 
Fulham and future opportunities for physiotherapy within Primary Care Networks 
(PCNs). From an Imperial College Healthcare Trust perspective, it provides an update 
on the Trust MSK physiotherapy provision. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the members of the Health and Wellbeing Board consider and provide comments on 
the report. 
 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 

H&F Priorities – not applicable as external report 
 
Contact Officer(s): 
 
Name:  Carol Lambe  
Position: Head of Commissioning and Delivery, H&F CCG 
Telephone: 020 8753 3145 
Email:   carol.lambe@nhs.net 
 
Name:   Elaine Sheerin 
Position:  Acting Clinical Service Lead Outpatients, Therapies, ICHT 
Telephone: 020 8753 2531 
Email:   
 
 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
 
Not Applicable 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:carol.lambe@nhs.net
mailto:carol.lambe@nhs.net


2  

1. BACKGROUND 
 

1.1. The CCG undertook an extensive review of musculoskeletal services (MSK) 
which resulted in a new service specification being developed and a 
community service procured to include all key components identified within 
the review process. This included the option for self-referral; single point of 
triage; assessment and treatment at a choice of locations across the 
borough; direct access to diagnostics and onward referral to hospital services 
if required. The contract was awarded to Connect Health in 2016. 

 
1.2. Residents requiring physiotherapy can self-refer by telephone or be referred 

by their GP. The initial appointment is usually a telephone assessment by a 
physiotherapist (PhysioLine) to provide a provisional diagnosis and provide 
instant self-management advice. Face to face assessment and treatment will 
then be arranged at a clinic of the patients’ choice usually within 5 working 
days of referral. Most patients are seen in clinic within 4 weeks of referral. 

 
1.3. The community physiotherapy service receives very positive patient feedback 

(92% of patients would recommend the physiotherapy service to family or 
friends) and GPs value the service; particularly the option for self-referral and 
the ability to print a leaflet for patients to take away. 
 https://www.northendmedicalcentre.nhs.uk/website/E85003/files/MSKHFPatie 
 ntguide.pdf 

 

1.4. MSK Physiotherapy when needed is provided as part of an acute and 
elective hospital care pathway by the Imperial hospital physiotherapy team at 
Charing Cross and St Mary’s Hospital sites. 

 
1.5. Patients are referred with MSK conditions by hospital consultants following 

an outpatient review or following an inpatient stay. There is no direct access 
via GP referral. 

 
1.6. The Imperial physiotherapy service receives very positive patient feedback 

with 95% of patients would recommend the physiotherapy service to family or 
friends 

 
1.7. There are further opportunities for physiotherapy provision in Hammersmith 

and Fulham with the introduction of first contact physiotherapist (FCP) in 
each Primary Care Network in 2020. Patients will be able to see a FCP 
instead of a GP to assess, diagnose, refer on for diagnostics and provide 
initial treatment advice. The FCP will not usually provide on-going 
physiotherapy face to face treatment; this will continue to be provided within 
the community. Initial scoping work is underway between PCNs and MSK 
providers to progress the implementation of FCPs in Hammersmith and 
Fulham 

Page 14

https://www.northendmedicalcentre.nhs.uk/website/E85003/files/MSKHFPatientguide.pdf
https://www.northendmedicalcentre.nhs.uk/website/E85003/files/MSKHFPatientguide.pdf
https://www.northendmedicalcentre.nhs.uk/website/E85003/files/MSKHFPatientguide.pdf
https://www.northendmedicalcentre.nhs.uk/website/E85003/files/MSKHFPatientguide.pdf


Carol Lambe 

Head of Commissioning and Delivery 

HFCCG 

P
age 15



 In 2013/14 an extensive review of MSK services was undertaken 
across Central; West; Hammersmith & Fulham; Hounslow and Ealing 
CCGs (CWHHE) which included review of current provision against 
national best practice models of care. The project group included 
CWHHE CCG commissioners and lead clinicians, GPs, acute and 
community service operational managers and clinicians, public health 
representation and patient/service user representatives. 

 The following were identified as key components of service delivery 
• Timely single point of triage (administrative and clinical),  
• Timely assessment (direct and non-direct) at a choice of locations,  
• Option for self referral 
• Direct access to diagnostics including X-ray, MSK ultrasound, MSK 

MRI, routine screening blood tests & pathology, nerve conduction 
studies, CT and DEXA scanning.  

• Disease management and treatments including MSK physiotherapy; 
joint injection therapy and pain management,  

• Service user support, self-management advice and education,  
• Referrer support, training and advice in the management of MSK 

conditions in primary care 
• Onward referral to secondary care (orthopaedics / rheumatology / pain) 

in accordance with patient choice 
 
 

 

P
age 16



 New MSK service specification developed and procured 
to include all key components identified. 

 Contract awarded to Connect Health 
 Self Referral by calling 0203 795 3426 to speak with 

Patient Care Advisor (30% of referrals in 18/19)  
 Or GP referral (69% of referrals) 
 Or consultant referral (1% of referrals) 
 Choice of clinics : 
•    Bridge House Centre for Health 
•    Hammersmith Fitness and Squash Centre 
•    Hammersmith Surgery 
•    Lillie Road Fitness Centre  
•    Milson Road Health Centre  
•    Parkview Centre for Health and Wellbeing 
 
 
 

P
age 17



 Initial appointment is usually a telephone assessment 
by a physiotherapist (PhysioLine) within 24 hours of 
referral (target is 48 hours) . 

 The call usually last about 20 minutes asking 
questions about the condition and general health in 
order to make a provisional diagnosis, provide instant 
self management advice and plan care accordingly. 

 Face to face assessment and treatment will then be 
arranged at a clinic of the patients choice usually 
within 5 working days of referral.  

 Patients with hearing or communication difficulties 
or requiring an interpreter are assessed in a face to 
face appointment  

P
age 18



 Total number of people seen (assessed) 13,269 

 70.1% were seen within 1 week (5 working days) 
of referral 

 15.4% seen within 1-2 weeks of referral 

 7.1% seen within 2-3 weeks of referral 

 4.1% seen within 3-4 weeks of referral 

 3.2% waited 4 weeks or longer to be seen 

 0.9% waited more than 6 weeks to be seen (124 
people) usually due to patient choice  

 Performance target is 90% of people assessed 
within 4 weeks of referral so performance is very 
good at 96.8%  

   

P
age 19



 Q1 performance did decline with longer wait times due to a 
number of clinical staff vacancies.  

 Average wait for face to face assessment increased to 10 
working days from referral with 88% people assessed 
within 4 weeks of referral (below the 90% target) 

 2.6% of referrals waited over 6 weeks  

 The service is now fully recruited with performance back 
on track in August & September:  

 average wait for face to face assessment 6 working days 

 94% waiting less than 4 weeks (August) and 96% 
(September) 

 1.7% of referrals waited over 6 weeks 

P
age 20



 Patients are invited to complete national FFT on discharge: 

 How likely are you to recommend our service to friends and 

family if they needed similar care or treatment? ranking 

answer from "extremely likely" to "extremely unlikely”  

 In Q1 91.7% of respondents would recommend the 

physiotherapy service to friends and family and only 

2.4% were unlikely or extremely unlikely to recommend 
the service (33% response rate).  

“It’s great having the patient self-referral option for MSK 
and the option to print a leaflet in SystmOne for MSK so 
they can walk away with it and the phone number”.                   
                                                  HFCCG GP 

    
      

P
age 21



 

 Physiotherapy which is part of an acute and elective hospital care 

pathway is provided by the hospital physiotherapy team rather than 

community physiotherapy team 

 

 This is included within the main Imperial contract as a block 

payment 

 

 The MSK physiotherapy service is provided at Charing Cross and 

St. Mary’s Hospitals 

 

 Imperial provides physiotherapy to patients referred with MSK 

conditions by hospital consultants following an outpatient review for 

patients registered with a GP under a North West London Clinical 

Commissioning Group 

 

P
age 22



 MSK physiotherapy is also provided for patients following an ICHT inpatient stay 

for the same (MSK) problem (within 6 months). These patients can be registered 

with any CCG 

 

 There is no direct access via GP referral  

 

 Total number of people seen (assessed) 4,943 of which 21.3% were H&F 

residents 

 

 High number of referrals are for patients with complex presentation requiring on-

going physiotherapy intervention 

 

 Weekly specialist clinics for complex upper limb, lower limb and spinal referrals 

with 60 minute face to face assessment appointments 

 

 Following initial assessment the appropriate treatment is determined which can 

include 1:1 follow up appointments, exercise classes or hydrotherapy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 23



 32.8% were seen within 10 working days from referral 

 

 25.2% were seen within 2-4 weeks from referral 

 

 42% were seen 4+ weeks from referral 

 

 Average wait for routine referrals is 6 weeks (range from 
2 – 12 weeks)  

 

 Friends & Family Test: more than 95% of patients would 
recommend the physiotherapy service to family or 
friends who needed similar treatment month on month  

 

 

P
age 24



 18.6% of patients were seen within 10 working days of 

referral 

  

 23.8% of patients were seen 2-4 weeks from referral 

 

 57.6% of patients were seen 4+ weeks from referral 

 

 Average wait for routine referrals is 9 weeks (range from 

2 – 12 weeks)  

 

 

P
age 25



 Performance declined in 2019/2020 with longer 

wait times due to a number of clinical staff 

vacancies  

 We are in the final stages of recruitment for 

several clinical posts and aim to be fully staffed by 

January 2020 

 13.7% of New Patients failed to attend their initial 

physiotherapy appointment in 2018/19.  We are 

currently analysing the reasons behind this figure 

to improve capacity and access to services 

 

 

 

P
age 26



 From April 2020 each Primary Care Network (PCN) can 
receive 70% funding to employ a first contact 
physiotherapist (FCP) to support delivery of the new 
Network Contract. 

 FCPs are advanced physiotherapy practitioners working 
within primary care who will see patients with suspected or 
diagnosed MSK conditions as the first point of contact, 
instead of a GP.  

 FCPs will assess, diagnose, refer on for diagnostics and  
provide initial treatment advice. They will not usually provide 
on-going physiotherapy face to face treatment.  

 Initial scoping work is underway between PCNs and MSK 
providers to progress the implementation of FCPs in H&F 

 

P
age 27



Business Intelligence

1

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7



Business Intelligence

Adult Social Care BI
• In LBHF, data and technology are at the heart of the vision for ASC delivery.
• As part of this there is a workstream to build a new reporting platform across 

the entire ASC pathway.
• This reporting platform includes both data from case management systems 

but also national released benchmarking data.
• In future it can also include partner data.
• It consists of interactive dashboards that are available at a strategic/manager 

level and at a practitioner level.

P
age 29



Business Intelligence

Delayed Transfer Of Care Dashboard
• Based on nationally released data.
• Provides users with the ability to monitor performance – Social Care and 

NHS delays.
• Loaded into our BI infrastructure automatically each month for the whole 

country.
• Tools able users to benchmark performance with other local authorities.
• Available through a web browser and integrated with Office 365.
• ASCOF, SAC Safeguarding and Finance Benchmarking Dashboards all 

planned to be developed.

P
age 30



Business Intelligence

DTOC Dashboard Demo

P
age 31



Business Intelligence

Safeguarding Dashboard
• Linked to Mosaic – Case Management System
• Live interactive dashboard – based on data as of last night.
• Two versions – a strategic/manager dashboard and a practitioner dashboard.
• Includes performance monitoring, data quality monitoring, provider 

performance monitoring, team and individual worker activity monitoring.
• Available through a web browser and integrated with Office 365.
• Other dashboards are being developed across the entire ASC Pathway –

reviews, single view of provider, service etc.

Safeguarding Dashboard Demo

P
age 32



1 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Report to: Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date: 18/03/20 

Subject: NWL Commissioning Intentions 20/21 

Report of: Hammersmith & Fulham Clinical Commissioning Group 

Responsible Directors: Janet Cree, Managing Director Hammersmith and Fulham 
Clinical Commissioning Group  

Summary 

This report provides details on the North West London Commissioning Intentions 
(appendix A) and the local Hammersmith and Fulham Commissioning Intentions 
(appendix B). The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note these two documents. 
Appendix C provides a snap shot of the H&F ICP programme. 

Recommendations 

That the members of the Health and Wellbeing Board consider and provide comments on 
the report. 

Wards Affected: All 

H&F Priorities – not applicable as external report 

Contact Officer(s): 

Name: Mark Jarvis  
Position: Head of Governance and Engagement Hammersmith and Fulham Clinical 

Commissioning Group 
Email: mark.jarvis1@nhs.net 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

Not Applicable 

1. North West London Approach

In line with the requirements of the NHS Standard Contract which requires prior 
notification of any change to the commissioning contracts for 2020/21, the details set 
out in appendix outlines the North West London System Intentions and approach to 

Page 33

Agenda Item 8

mailto:mark.jarvis1@nhs.net
mailto:mark.jarvis1@nhs.net


2  

implementing commissioning changes in 2020/21 in collaboration with health and 
social care partners. This approach also takes account of our shared ambitions and will 
utilise the opportunity for flexibility with any notification being issued. 

 

1.1 The purpose is to outline the framework and approach within which the System 
will seek to deliver national and local priorities through service change whilst 
maintaining financial balance and quality of services across the North West London 
health economy. 

1.2 At the current time the full details of the national operating plan which outlines 
updates to NHS England’s commissioning intentions and tariff changes are not 
known. However, it is the intention to incorporate any changes as these come to light 
during the course of our discussions. NWL STP intends to continue its efforts to 
deliver national performance standards (including cancer and urgent care) and the 
delivery of quality services across all providers with a move to delivery of outcome 
standards via the development of the Integrated Care system. NW London CCGs 
intend to fully engage with all partners including local authorities, the voluntary 
sector, and patients and their carers to ensure engagement and support of our 
direction of travel. 

1.3 The key drivers for a System approach to developing the North West London 
System Intentions is the overall financial challenge and our response within the 
System Recovery Plan, the delivery of mandated NHS Long Term Plan priorities and 
other local System priorities in 2020/21. In addition, our commissioning intelligence 
and JSNA have identified areas where we need to improve the care and support for 
pockets of our population in some of the boroughs who suffer from long term and life 
limiting conditions such as diabetes, cardio-vascular and respiratory diseases and 
who are not coping to self-manage and maintain their health. As a system we have 
to ensure equity of provision and standards of care with the available resources. We 
will use our System Intentions to deliver our national and local priorities and to 
address the health inequalities. 

2. Hammersmith and Fulham CCG Local Intentions 
 

2.1 Appendix B sets out the local commissioning intentions that Hammersmith and 
Fulham CCG intend to pursue in 2020/21. These are derived from the NW London 
system intentions, reflecting the local perspective. 

3. Integrated Care 
 

3.1 Carrying forward the work founded in the System Transformation Partnerships 
(STPs), NW London NHS organisations are moving toward an Integrated Care 
System (ICS), as outlined in the national guidance and The Plan, with further 
detailed guidance still emerging as regional and local NHS organisations work 
together to deliver to the policy vision. 

Page 34



3  

NWL CCGs in particular are working ever more closely together and toward a single 
operating model, including shared and joint priorities with regional and local 
responsibilities for delivering high quality care and transformation. Further work is 
expected over the next two years to deliver this single model and provide population- 
based healthcare for the residents of NWL in partnership with Health and Care 
organisations, including our local borough council partners. This will be a complex 
process with many stakeholders involved, but all with the enthusiasm for the same 
goal – to deliver a better and more effective health and care system through 
integration and joined up care between services. 

3.2 The local H&F Integrated Care Partnership; Achieving improved outcomes for 
H&F residents and patients is the key objective of the local ICP. Hammersmith and 
Fulham CCG has been working with our health and care partners across the 
borough to further develop our local Integrated Care Partnership. A summary of the 
ICP focus is set out in Appendix C. Working together as partners this will continue to 
evolve and iterate throughout 20/21. 

Page 35



10/25/2019 1 

 
                                  Appendix A 
 
North West London  
System Intentions 2020/21 
version 1.8 

DRAFT 

September 2019 

 

1 

P
age 36



10/25/2019 2 

Version Control 

Version Date Description of change By who 

27/09/19 Slide 2, insert 'good health and care outcomes' to reflect comments made by AD Equalities’ 2nd  para under NHS LTP and LHCP 

Plans heading 

LC 

1.6 27/09/19 Delete slide 17 - Primary Care and insert revised text re. primary care in slide 21 SJ 

1.6 27/09/19 Delete EoLC slide, and replace with updated slide 24, LPoL MS 

1.7   02/10/19 Slide 3 – Context: 1st para insert and our response within the System Recovery Plan’ HWJ  

1.7  02/10/19 Slide 4: Financial Recovery: insert - Key areas of focus for the Recovery programme include:   

1.7  02/10/19 Slide 4: The NHS LTP and LCPs – Amend text in last para. HWJ 

1.7  02/10/19  Slide 8: Management of Risk across the system; 2nd para; change ‘lessen to ‘mitigate the impact’ ; insert ‘ service change  ‘ into last 

sentence; new para graph – Management of QIPP and CIPs 

RS/LC 

1.7   02/10/19 Slide 10: Key enablers – last para, remove  of circa £1.7m LC  

1.7 02/10/19  Slide 12: CYP – Key Strategic changes: - add 5. Childhood obesity;   AP 

1.7   02/10/19 Slide 12 CYP – System Intention 2020/21 – add Childhood Obesity    AP 

1.7  02/10/19 Slide 13 CYP (Cont’d) – Who support these changes and why: add 6. Childhood obesity   AP  

1.7  02/10/19 Slide 15: Key strategic Changes – add 9. 10; System Intentions 2020/21 – add 11, 12   AP 

1.7  02/10/19 Slide 21: What benefits are these changes expected to have: add last statement  SJ 

1.7   02/10/19 Slide 22: Key strategic changes for 2020/21: add 8.   LR 

1.7 02/10/19 Slide 23 and 24:  Insert Appendix 1 MSK slide  SJ 

1.7   02/10/19 Slide 26: Key strategic changes – insert 4.   SJ 

1.7  02/10/19 Slide 28: What benefits are those changes expected to have: change text to read:  System savings worked up in Recovery Plan HWJ  

1.7   02/10/19 Slide: 17: Key strategic change for 202/21 – 1. delete and waiting list management (repeated in point 2.)   RB/LC 

1.7 02/10/19 Slide 28: PTS:  - what benefits are these: replace ‘system savings’ with ‘system saving worked up in the Recovery plan’    LC/HWJ 

1.7a 03/10/19  Slide 15 Urgent and Emer Care -  System Intentions 2020’/21 – add new point 1.   XC 

1.7a 03/10/19 Slide 20: Key strategic changes – point 1 – last sentence add across the sector 

 

LR 

1.7a 03/10/19 Slide 21: Out of Hospital – Primary Care – System Intentions 2020/21: point 1, add they add commissioned value and not 

duplicate the national specifications following NWL. 

SJ 

1.7a 03/10/19 

 
Slide 21 Out of Hospital – Primary Care: What benefits are these changes…- add the second sentence beginning with This will 

build on… 

SJ 

2 

P
age 37



10/25/2019 3 

Introduction 

In line with the requirements of the NHS Standard Contract which requires prior notification of any change to the commissioning contracts for 

2020/21, this outlines the North West London System Intentions and approach to implementing commissioning changes in 2020/21 in 

collaboration with health and social care partners. This approach also takes account of our shared ambitions and will utilise the opportunity for 

flexibility with any notification being issued. 

Purpose 

The purpose is to outline the framework and approach within 

which the System will seek to deliver national and local priorities 

through service change whilst maintaining financial balance and 

quality of services across the North West London health 

economy. 

At the current time the full details of the national operating plan 

which outlines updates to NHS England’s commissioning 

intentions and tariff changes are not known. However, it is the 

intention to incorporate any changes as these come to light 

during the course of our discussions. 

NWL STP intends to continue its efforts to deliver national 

performance standards (including cancer and urgent care) and 

the delivery of quality services across all providers with a move to 

delivery of outcome standards via the development of the 

Integrated Care system.  

It is our intention to fully engage with all partners including local 

authorities, the voluntary sector, and patients and their carers to 

ensure engagement and support of our direction of travel.  

Context 

The key drivers for a System approach to developing the North 

West London System Intentions is the overall financial challenge 

and our response within the System Recovery Plan, the delivery 

of mandated NHS Long Term Plan priorities and other local 

System priorities in 2020/21.  

In addition, our commissioning intelligence and JSNA have 

identified areas where we need to improve the care and support 

for pockets of our population in some of the boroughs who suffer 

from long term and life limiting conditions such as diabetes, 

cardio-vascular and respiratory diseases and who are not coping 

to self manage and maintain their health. As a system we have to 

ensure equity of provision and standards of care with the 

available resources.  

We will use our System Intentions to deliver our national and 

local priorities and to address the health inequalities.  

3 

P
age 38



10/25/2019 4 

Context 
Financial Recovery 

The NWL Integrated Care System faces significant financial 

challenge to deliver national and local priorities with a reported 

underlying financial deficit of £324m across the system, mainly 

driven by continued high use and cost of acute trusts, high 

dependency users of continuing health care and against a 

defined system control total which forces the system to live 

within its means. Our challenge is delivering services for an 

ageing population with patients who live with long term 

conditions and have complex needs, often needing help with 

self management to prevent unplanned visits to hospital. 

Therefore, to achieve financial stability will not only require 

rigorous financial control with ambitious targets, but also a 

collaborative way of working that will ensure the system 

achieves its control total for 2020/21. Key areas of focus for the 

Recovery programme include: 

1. To manage the number of appropriate referrals and A&E 

attendance by building on the development of PCNs and 

reducing variation  (see slide 21) 

2. To reorganise how we carry out Out-Patient services via the 

OP Programme Board (slide 16) 

3.  Urgent Care work stream to optimise patient flows by 

mitigating activity growth and controlling escalating cost  

(slides 14, 15) 

4. Aligning community care pathways with a NWL framework of 

ICS (slide 20)  

 

 

The NHS Long Term Plan and local Health and Care Plans  

The Long Term Plan Implementation Framework sets out the 

requirements for NWL Integrated Care System to work together over the 

next 5 years to deliver national mandated priorities as follows:  

1. Delivering a new service model for 21st Century 

2. Increasing the focus on population health through developing as an 

Integrated Care System with supporting Integrated Care Partnerships 

3. Prevention 

4. Focus on improving quality 

5. Supporting staff 

6. Delivering digitally enabled care 

7. Using taxpayers money to maximum effect 

 

As we aspire to achieve our joint ambitions as a system against the 

underlying financial deficit, we will work by closer collaboration to reduce 

demand through integration of service models and the development of the 

prevention agenda which will be highlighted throughout the appendices. 

This will  facilitate seamless care pathways, good health and care 

outcomes and system efficiency which will facilitate our financial recovery. 

Key metrics for prevention are throughout the document, underpinning 

system sustainability. 

 

Financial 

Recovery  

Collaboration 

Integration  
Delivery of Key 
System Priorities  

4 

P
age 39



10/25/2019 5 

Context 

5 

Northwest London as a place 

• North West London STP has a population of 2.4 million. 

 

• The STP has 400 GP practices, 4 Hospital Trusts, 1 integrated acute and 

community trust and 4 mental health and community health trusts. 

 

• Some NWL boroughs have the highest life expectancy differences in 

England. 

 

• There are over 300,000 over 65’s in NWL of which 150,000 of these live 

alone. 

 

• Almost a quarter of a million people in NWL will experience a common 

mental health need. 

.  

• £340m is spent on NWL residents who have diabetes. Over 300,000 

people in NWL drink more than the recommended weekly units of 

alcohol. 

 

• The STP has both a large volume of traffic and Heathrow airport which 

leads to areas of poor air quality. 

 

(Source: The North West London health and care partnership ) 

Statistics 
National 
Average 

Brent Ealing 
Hammersmith & 

Fulham 
Harrow Hounslow Hillingdon 

Kensington & 
Chelsea 

Westminster 

Life Expectancy 
- Women 

83.1 years 85.0 84.6 84.5 85.9 84.0 83.8 86.2 82 

Life Expectancy 
- Men 

79.6 years 80.3 80.9 79.5 82.7 80.0 80.8 83.2 82.7 

Homelessness 
(not in priority 

need) 

0.8 per 
1000 

1.0 2.8 0.5 0.5 0.1 0.4 1.2 0.7 

16-64 
Employment 

75.20% 71.30% 76.00% 77.50% 78.90% 78.30% 74.10% 65.40% 64.40% 

Earnings Wkly 
Average 

£670.80 £575.00 £664.60 £655.00 £576.13 £564.90 £687.84 £673.44 £695.11 

Obesity 18+ 62% 56.40% 61.90% 49.00% 52.90% 60.40% 62.40% 50.00% 48.00% 

Obesity Year 6 34.30% 43.40% 37.70% 37.50% 34.40% 37.40% 37.60% 36.70% 40.00% 

P
age 40



Our vision and priorities 

In NW London we have a vision to 

create one integrated health and care 

system that works together to maximise 

benefits to residents and staff. 

To achieve this vision, and 

to deliver the clinical 

ambitions and outcomes 

set out in the NHS Long 

Term Plan we are 

focussing on seven 

interconnected areas 

 

 

Our system intentions set 

out key strategic changes 

required in 2020/21 to 

deliver the requirements in 

the NHS Long Term Plan 

within the parameters of 

our Financial Recovery 

Plan. 

Delivering the NHS Long Term Plan 
Transformed 
‘out-of-hospital 
care’ and fully 
integrated 
community-
based care 
 

Reducing 
pressure on 
emergency 
hospital 
services 
 

Giving people 
more control 
over their own 
health and 
more 
personalised 
care 
 

Prevention  
 

Digitally-
enabling 
primary 
care and 
outpatient 
care   
 

Improving 
mental 
health 
services 
 

Improving 
cancer 
outcomes 
 

Shorter 
waits for 
planned 
care 
 

Population 
health 

Seven interconnected areas  

 
 

6 

P
age 41



Planned Care 

including 

outpatients 

Including ICP 

development at 

Borough level as well 

as Better Care for 

Major Conditions: 

Cardiovascular disease 

Stroke care 

Diabetes 

Respiratory disease 

End of Life Care 

Patient Transport 

NW London key system priorities for 2020/21  

Medicines management 
Delegated specialised 

commissioning 

Contract form, payment, risk 

share and reducing transactional 

burden 

Each of these priority areas have been addressed in Appendix 1 with further detail where we will outline: 

 

 The key strategic change for 2020/21; 

 Who supports these changes and why; 

 The impact of these System Intention change to contracts in 2020/21; and 

 What benefits (e.g. System savings, patient experience) are these changes expected to have  

7 

P
age 42



Approach to Contracting 

Contractual  

One of the key messages emerging from the initial NWL 

System Intentions workshop identified the need to manage risk 

via simplified contracts and investigating contract forms that 

could incentivise productivity not increased activity and the 

need to manage demand. As part of this we will be testing the 

possibilities of a single control total for the STP overarching the 

health economy. 

 

Whilst we seek to maintain performance standards and secure 

delivery of service change through our System Intentions, we 

will consider how best to re-task the existing contract 

governance forums to monitor service delivery and 

performance. This will ensure that as a System we do not lose 

sight of the performance standards and the safety of our 

patients and carers in our drive to achieve our efficiency 

requirements.  

 

We expect to implement any new tariff change with providers 

as part of existing contract arrangements, until further 

guidance is issued in relation to national tariff and mandated 

contract requirements that will impact on evolving ICSs.  

 

Management of Risk across the System 

Our aim  is to reduce transactional burden, lessen the risk for all partners 

and where there is a perceived risk this is managed jointly to lessen the 

impact on any partner  

 

Where we are required to introduce excluded procedures or implement 

drugs policy or adopt new measures as part of national mandated 

requirements or following review of evidence to support financial 

recovery at the local level, we will jointly agree a plan for implementation 

which mitigate the impact on partners.  

 

As the System Intentions have been developed jointly with the input of all 

partners this allows us to adopt a more flexible approach to notifying in-

sector Providers of changes to contracts. We have used this time to 

ensure the System Intentions are fully supported and as a minimum  

meet the requirements for all partners with the plans and governance 

fully aligned to meet the 1st April 2020 deadline for implementation of 

service change. 

 

To strengthen system resilience we will work jointly to develop schemes 

which will add value to overall delivery of the System Recovery Plan. 

The development of a joint group across the sector will help deliver a 

single savings programme. 

 

Management QIPP and CIPs 

8 

P
age 43



Key Enablers 

Digital Workforce 

We will continue to work as System to  develop the evolving  NWL 

Digital  Strategy which is aligned to the NHS Long Term Plan, the 

NWL System Intentions and the One London work on a Strategic 

Development Investment Framework. We will:  

1. Extend primary care systems to support PCNs and integrate with 

the Health and Care Information Exchange during 2020/21 

2. Integrate community and mental health systems with the Health 

and Care Information Exchange, to support integrated care and 

patient engagement and join this up to the ‘One London’ 

programme to share patient records across London in 2020 

3. Extend WSIC to enable doctors to have a holistic view of patients’ 

health and care, to extend long-term condition dashboards (starting 

with diabetes) and to support development of PCNs in 2020/21 

4. Build a ‘Digital Innovation Hub’ in NWL in 2020 capitalising on the 

success of WSIC and enabling research use of anonymised data 

5. Continue to engage with NW London citizens about the use of 

digital technologies and further the use of digital technologies 

through the Digital Citizen programme NWL STP is working with 

NHS providers to record 

In 2020/21, we will: 

1. Continue to focus on reducing spend on temporary staffing across the 

Acute, Mental Health, Community and Specialist Trusts by reducing 

demand and the unit cost of temporary staff. 

 

2. Support the development of primary care networks and accelerate 

increases in the workforce, and changes in skill mix through the 

introduction of new roles, in line with the Five Year Forward View. 

 

3. Address the specific nursing workforce shortages in Trusts through 

introducing the nursing associate role and increasing quality and quantity 

of training placements 

 

4. Working with the two mental health providers to accelerate workforce 

growth within the main service delivery areas, in line with the Five Year 

Forward View for Mental Health.  

  

 

9 

P
age 44



Key Enablers (cont’d) 

Estates 

NWL STP is working with NHS providers to record and monitor healthcare estate across North West London including primary, community, mental 

health and acute estate. As part of this exercise will include: 

  

1. Evaluate and map current health estate, including tenure, current void and under-utilisation across the health system. Develop strategies to 

reduce the void and improve efficiency of estate usage and determine additional infrastructure requirements by overlaying housing zones and 

developments 

 

2. Utilisation and optimisation studies will continue to be used to review the performance of existing estate and buildings. This will inform the design 

and development of new efficient and technologically advanced buildings and facilities. 

 

3. One Public Estate – to work closely with public sector partners to optimise joint opportunities for estate rationalisation, utilise creative investment 

that delivers transformational change, generate efficiencies (capital receipts and reduced running costs) and support economic growth (homes 

and jobs). 

 

4. Work effectively with Local Authority Planning Teams to develop Local Plans, IDP and Neighbourhood plans that convey the health requirements 

and estate renewal to secure funding (s106 or Community Infrastructure Levy) from housing developers. 

 

5. Develop Outline and Full Business Cases that support strategic investment for acute, community and primary care transformation, including 

reviewing revenue implications and cost pressures. 

 

6. Rationalise and invest in existing estate and dispose of estate that is not fit for purpose 

 

7. Work with property partners in redeveloping existing NHS estate to provide new, modern, fit for purpose estate and support local housing 

objectives 

To support the above objectives and where opportunities have already been identified to optimise the existing estate and also where buildings and 

sites are being declared surplus to requirement that meet the key criteria these are being handed back to NHS PS or disposed of by providers, to 

arrange alternative tenants or uses. It is anticipated that annual void reductions will be delivered in 20/21.  

 

10 

P
age 45



Next Steps 

As a System, we have already developed structures and timelines to progress the work highlighted in this document  together with the 

completion of our Long Term Plan. We will also develop a timeline for discussing potential contractual forms between all partners by 

early November 2019. We also intend to outline the revised contract governance structures and arrangements to support this new way of 

working which will cover the following areas:  

 

• Contract Management 

• Finance  

• Service developments at borough level (children, community, learning disability, primary care) 

• Performance  Management  

• Business Intelligence/Informatics 

• Finance 

 

If you have any questions, please contact either myself of Jo Ohlson in the first instance. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

 CCG Signature Provider Signature 

11 

P
age 46



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. The Early Years  

a) Improve to childhood screening and immunisation in PCNs to agreed 

trajectories. 

b) Support parents with advice on feeding and early parenting by embedding 

health visitors in Primary Care Networks. 

 

2.  Improve care for children with long term conditions  

a) Asthma - Support practice nurses and GPs in Primary Care Networks by 

network of asthma nurse specialists to reduce unwarranted variation in 

patient outcomes across NW London. 

b) Asthma - A shared approach to training and development of key staff 

groups across the health and social care economy including school nurses. 

c) Asthma -A consistent approach to engaging with and communicating with 

children, young people and families in relation to asthma awareness 

escalation plans and #AskAboutAsthma. 

 

3.  Children with complex needs  

a) Identification of all CYP with complex health who will be offered access to a 

Personal Care Record - #mylifeplan - (e.g. a digital Care Information 

Exchange record) so that they and their parents / carers can use to 

improve their care and their wider life. 

b) Health care, education and social care staff will be supported to provide 

care to meet the health and social care needs for these children and their 

families.   

c) Three-way consultations with MDT (specialists), GP and family will be 

adopted to ensure better transition at key stages in the CYP journey from 

pre-school to school to adulthood. 

 

4. Dental – here for completion. Commissioned by NHSE 

 

5. Childhood Obesity 

Tackling  the childhood obesity    crisis. With a focus on pregnant women & 

new parents, BME parents & schools and obesity pathways.  

   

The Early Years 

Work with NHSE and NHSI (London) and Public Health England 

early years team to share messages to help reduce health 

inequalities. 

 

Asthma 

Take an integrated approach to the delivery of improvements in the 

care to CYP with asthma through Asthma ambitions, Asthma 

standards, Asthma toolkit and successful development of STP 

paediatric networks and NHSE Severe Asthma network. 

 

Asthma - Air Quality and sustainability  

Support the London Vision for targeted support from the NHS 

Sustainable Development Unit to spread best practice in 

sustainable development, including improving air quality, plastics 

and carbon reduction. 

 

Take an active participation in the new CYP transformation 

Programme which will in conjunction with the Maternity 

Transformation Programme, oversee the delivery of the CYP 

commitments. 

 

Childhood Obesity  

Support the London Vision for every young Londoner being 

supported to maintain a healthy weight. Taking an integrated 

approach across health and local authority to the delivery of 

improvements to tackle the childhood obesity. Taking an active 

participation in the new Healthy Communities and Prevention 

Programme, oversee the delivery of the prevention commitments.  

Appendix 1: 
Children and Young People 

12 

P
age 47



Children and Young People (cont’d)  

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g 

system savings 
1. Early Years The changes are supported by patients, senior 

commissioners and providers across NW London.  The need to 

change is directed by the NHS Long Term Plan  

 

2. Asthma The changes are supported by patients, senior 

commissioners and providers across NW London.  The need to 

change is directed by the NHS Long Term Plan  

 

3. Asthma: Drivers are: the variations in the crude rate of hospital 

admissions for asthma per 100,000 (under 19 years) across NW 

London. 

 

4. Asthma Increase in the overall number of CYP who, following 

ED attendance, receive an asthma review within 48 hours  

 

5. Children with complex needs - The changes are supported by 

patients, senior commissioners and providers across NW 

London.  The need to change is directed by the NHS Long Term 

Plan  

 

6. Childhood Obesity – The changes are supported by patients, 

senior commissioners and providers across NW London. The 

need for change is directed by the Long Term Plan and London 

Vision.  

1. The Early Years A reduction in the number of emergency attendances at 

Urgent Treatment Centres and A&E for jaundice, feeding problems and 

gastroenteritis as a result of improved education and prevention. These will 

result in savings to the system. 

 

2. Asthma A reduction in inappropriate NEL admissions and CYP OP 

attendances through an investment in training and in number of asthma 

nurse specialists that will result in a savings to the system. 

 

3. Asthma An increase in the number of CYP receiving a clinical review, by a 

trained professional, after any exacerbation of asthma leading to a reduction 

in the rate of acute re-attendance (within 7 days) and re-admission. This will 

result in savings to the system. 

 

4. Children with Complex Needs – reduction in NEL admissions and 

fragmentation of care. This will result in savings to the system. 

 

5.   Childhood Obesity – Prevalence of childhood obesity in reception, 

prevalence of childhood obesity in year 6, reduce inequality in the prevalence 

of obesity. This will reduce health problems including dental cavities, fatty 

liver disease and type 2 diabetes.  

Appendix 1: 

13 

P
age 48



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. To deliver the national target of 51% booked on a continuity of 

care pathway by 2021 

 

2. All 4 acute providers to be fully compliant with the NHSR 10 point 

safety plan 

 

3. All 4 providers to be fully compliant with the RCOG each baby 

counts and saving babies lives care bundle v2 safety standards 

 

4. All 4 acute providers to be fully complaint with the national 

midwifery and RCOG obstetric staffing standards 

 

1. Review and standardisation of maternity coding of activity 

 

2. Compliance of continuity of care performance monitored nationally 

Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system 

savings 

1. Locally supported by each executive board 

 

2. Supported system wide by the clinical leads of the LMS 

 

3. Nationally supported by NHSE ,RCOG and RCM 

1. Safer maternity care 

 

2. Improved clinical outcomes 

 

3. Reduction in still birth, term admissions to NICU and brain injury 

 

4. Improved patient and staff experience. 

Maternity 

14 

P
age 49



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

Expand and reform the range of emergency care services. This fits 

with priorities of the NW London UEC Board which was established to 

mitigate activity growth and control escalating cost. This work aims 

minimise variation, reduce demand and maximise value for money 

spent in NW London. It will set the direction, expectation and 

timescale for the four A&E Delivery Boards and hold local systems to 

account for delivery. 

1. Generate evidence of key local drivers of demand and variation 

to better understand the opportunities to address these 

2. LAS demand management – scaling up alternate pathways and 

initiatives with NHS 111, LAS clinical hub and re-triaging service 

3. High intensity users (HIUs) – to ensure each local system is 

driving more consistent identification and cross-organisation 

management of patients, with a view to increasing patient 

wellbeing and reducing frequency of hospital attendances 

4. Urgent treatment Centres (UTCs) – drive reduction in variation 

and an increase in appropriate and effective utilisation to optimise 

the service  

5. Established acute frailty services as per NW London Acute Frailty 

Standards, linked to supporting primary care and community 

services 

6. Same day emergency care is consistently defined, remunerated 

and opportunity for non-elective activity treated as Same Day 

Emergency Care cases is maximised 

7. Reduction in extended length of stay, associated risk of avoidable 

harm and number of acute beds required by 100 

8. Flu vaccination – maximise uptake to mitigate avoidable illness 

9. Smoking cessation – maximise uptake of tobacco treatment by 

offering services to all people admitted to hospital that smoke 

with a focus on expectant mothers and their partners.  

10. Alcohol misuse - address rising challenge of alcohol by delivering 

behavioural interventions to high risk drinking individuals. Those 

hospitals with the highest rate of alcohol dependence-related 

admissions to be supported to fully establish alcohol care teams 

 

1. Closer working between 999/111; reduced ED conveyance and increase use of alternate care 

pathways. 

2. More patients having their unplanned care needs met at home/outside of ED 

3. Deliver new Integrated Urgent Care (IUC) Service 

a. Increased community awareness to access urgent care services and advice 

(alternatives to ED) 

b. Reduction in avoidable short stay and unplanned admissions 

4. Integration of alternative pathways for ambulance staff 

5. High intensity users (HIUs) are identified in line with the NW London definition 

a. High intensity user schemes meet NW London requirements for consistency, with 

care plans developed on CMC and  enacted across the system 

b. Care plans for high intensity users are shared across local primary, community, 

London ambulance and acute organisations on Co-ordinate My Care (CMC), through 

NW London data sharing agreements and patient consent 

c. Local systems demonstrate the success of their HIU schemes in reducing hospital 

attendances, in line with NW London requirements 

6. Reduce variation in the way urgent treatment centres (UTCs) operate, with best practice 

implemented through adherence to national and London standards and clear/effective referral 

pathways. The way information is recorded and reported is increasingly consistent across NW 

London 

a. Enforce London standards for streaming including the use of NEWs score 

b. Fewer than 6% of patients are referred to the emergency department (ED) following 

treatment in a NW London UTC and 6% of patients are re-directed to primary care  

7. Implement acute frailty services in all A&Es as per NW London acute frailty standards 

8. Implement consistent same day emergency care in all A&E sites in line with NW London 

clinical definitions 

a. Counting and  coding of Same day emergency care activity aligned across sites 

b. NW London tariff arrangements for SDEC activity aligned across sites 

9. Eliminate 12 hour mental health trolley breaches 

10. Patients staying in hospital for over 21 days should have a care plan generated on CMC and 

be shared across local primary, community, London ambulance and acute organisations  

11. Maximise update of flu vaccination of NHS workforce. 

12. Maximise uptake of smoking cessation services  

13. Reduction in alcohol related A&E attendances, hospital admissions and primary care 

interventions 

15 

Appendix 1:       Urgent and Emergency Care (including LAS and 111) 

P
age 50



Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g. system 

savings 

The long-term plan supports the changes as it is nationally recognised 

that  

 

‘We have an emergency care system under real pressure”  

 

and that  

 

“by expanding and reforming urgent and emergency care services, the 

practical goal is to ensure patients get the care they need fast, relieve 

pressure on A&E departments, and better offset winter demand 

spikes.” 

 

Locally, as the demand for urgent & emergency care services is 

continuing to grow, directly leading to a worsening financial position in 

NW London, the changes are supported by NW London System 

Recovery programme. The NW London Urgent & Emergency Care 

Board is providing oversight and assurance to the programme of work 

and is supported in delivery by the A&E Delivery Boards. 

1. Patients have access to better and more joined-up care in the community 

and only attend hospital when necessary 

 

2. All patients, whether they call 111 or 999 or walk-in to hospital, are 

streamed to/re-directed to the most appropriate place to receive 

treatment, in accordance with their level of need 

 

3. Patients’ time is respected, with waiting times kept to a minimum, hospital 

admissions only happening when clinically indicated and long hospital 

stays reduced 

 

4. Ambulant patients are not admitted to a bed overnight, unless deemed 

clinically appropriate 

 

5. Patients can expect to receive a similar service and have similar 

outcomes across NW London sites 

 

6. Commissioners are assured that urgent and emergency care services in 

NW London are providing quality and good value for money 

 

7. Pressure on staff in urgent & emergency care services, is reduced, 

especially over the winter period, as a result of better management of 

demand, improved flow through services and reduction of duplication 

Appendix 1:    Urgent and Emergency Care (Cont’d)  

16 

P
age 51



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

Continued joint delivery of the NWL Outpatient Programme allowing 

for the release of costs for both providers and commissioners by 

working together and allowing for further expansion of system change 

with operating standards across NWL for care outside hospital. 

 

Programme to cover: 

1. Demand management, triage 

2. Maintaining waiting list management  

3. Application of the developing OPA efficiencies policy for internal 

provider referrals and new to follow ratio management  

4. Encouraging referral changes from out of sector and non NHS 

providers back into NWL at local marginal rates 

5. Joint development and implementation of NWL clinical pathways 

for increased efficiencies i.e. endoscopy 

6. Jointly monitor planned care and outpatient  capacity to reduce 

reliance on in/out sourcing 

7. Working with providers to increase the availability of slots on eRS 

and increasing the provision of advice and guidance issued by 

acute clinical teams to support demand management  

8. Realigning pathways between acute and community services to 

manage pass through /return rates  

9. Jointly reviewing and implementing as a sector the location of 

service delivery to support improved patient experience and the 

release of costs  

10. Providers to fully utilise diagnostic cloud and available community 

diagnostic reports to avoid the need to repeat tests 

NWL CCGs intend to investigate new risk share opportunities for contracts 

for acute provision of care  

 

Building on the 2019/20 contract, NWL CCGs intend to include within our 

sector acute contracts: 

 

1. The out patient efficiencies policy to stretch new to follow ratios and 

internal provider referrals across all specialties 

2. Inclusion of elective activity previously carried out in out of sector 

providers back into the NWL sector 

3. Removal of funding to manage RTT backlog 

4. Reducing funded activity for face to face follow up appointments and 

transferring to the funding of virtual appointments where clinically 

suitable  

 

 

Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system 

savings 

All acute providers, community services providers and primary care 

networks to work collaboratively to deliver the changes  

System savings to support providers in delivering planned care activity within 

planned activity and costs  aligning to the NWL Health and Care Partnership 

agreements  

Planned Care including Outpatients 

17 

P
age 52



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. Increase access to evidence-based care for women with moderate to 

severe perinatal mental health needs. 

2. Expand access to community-based mental health services to meet 

the needs of more children and young people (CYP). 

3. Increased access for CYP with an eating disorder.  

4. Inpatient stays for CYP will take place where clinically appropriate 

and have the minimum possible length of stay as close to home as 

possible.  

5. Increase access to core IAPT. 

6. Increase physical health checks for those on the SMI register.  

7. Earlier and NICE compliant treatment for people aged 14-65 

experiencing their first episode of psychosis.  

8. Adults and older adults with SMI (including care for people with eating 

disorders, mental health rehabilitation needs and a ‘personality 

disorder’ diagnosis) receiving care from integrated primary and 

community mental health services. 

9. Full coverage of 24/7 adult Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment 

Teams operating in line with best practice. 

10. Implement a range of crisis alternatives. 

11. Ensure our liaison mental health teams are achieving ‘core 24’ 

standard.  

12. Ensure health based places of safety are in line with regional model 

of care. 

13. Maximise the opportunities for the voluntary sector to deliver services. 

 

Changes in contracts to meet the requirements of the NHS Long Term Plan: 

1. An additional 2,112 women accessing perinatal mental health services. 

2. 35% of CYP with mental health needs will be able to access services. 

3. 95% CYP with an eating disorder receive treatment within one week for urgent cases, 

and four weeks for routine cases.  

4. Core IAPT offer requirements (25% access, 50% recovery, 75% <6 weeks, 95% <18 

weeks). 

5. 60% of those on the SMI register will receive the complete list of physical checks and 

follow up.  

6. At least 56% of people aged 14-65 experiencing their first episode of psychosis will start 

treatment within two weeks with 50% of services to be graded at level 3.  

7. Commission new models of care to enable adults and older adults with SMI (including 

care for people with eating disorders, mental health rehabilitation needs and a 

‘personality disorder’ diagnosis) receive care from integrated primary and community 

mental health services. 

8. 100% coverage of 24/7 adult Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment Teams operating in 

line with best practice. 

9. Ensure all liaison mental health teams are contracted to achieve ‘core 24’ standard.  

Additionally: 

1. Commission a new model of care for Health Based Places of Safety across NW London  

which ensures standards are met  and includes a service for children and young people. 

2. All commissioned providers of mental services will flow data to the Mental Health 

Services Minimum Data Set (MHSMDS). 

3. An increase in contracts let to the voluntary and community sector with an emphasis on 

prevention  and early intervention (e.g. Crisis care alternatives). 

4. Ensure Provider Collaborative plans align with NW London and local contracting 

Appendix 1 Mental Health 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have e.g. system savings 

The NW London Mental Health Programme Executive (representing 

commissioners and providers supports these changes which are in line 

with the ambitions of the NHS Long Term Plan 

1. Reduction in presentations at A&E and inpatient admissions 

2. Earlier intervention and increased care in the community to prevent more costly inpatient 

care 

3. Improved service user experience  

4. Improved value for money  

5. Improved partnership working 

 

18 

P
age 53



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 
1. Maintain performance target for inpatient care (adults): no more than 30 adults 

with a learning disability (LD) and/or autism cared for in an inpatient unit, per 

million population.  

2. Achieve and maintain performance target for inpatient care (CYP) [once 

confirmed]: no more than 12-15 CYP with LD and/or autism cared for in an 

inpatient unit, per million population.  

3. Maintain performance of 75% people with LD aged 14 plus having annual health 

check. 

4. Specialised inpatient LD and autism services for CYP to be managed through 

NHS-led provider collaborative from April 2020.  

5. Use growing community health services investment to expand seven-day 

specialist multidisciplinary services and crisis care for people with LD and/or 

autism.  

6. Expand roll out of STOMP and STAMP programmes.  

7. 100% LeDeR carried out within 6 months.  

8. Systematic use of dynamic support registers. 

9. Consistent implementation of community care [education] and treatment reviews 

C[E]TRs.  

10. All local healthcare providers to make reasonable adjustments to support patients 

with LD and/or autism. 

11. Ensure people admitted to hospital have shortest possible length of stay.  

12. Reduce number of people who are subject to regular and/or prolonged restrictive 

practices including the use of seclusion/long term segregation.  

1. National performance targets for proportion of adults and CYP per 

million population being cared for in an inpatient setting, to be met.  

2. Ensure Provider Collaborative plans align with NW London and local 

contracting.  

3. All commissioned providers of local services to make reasonable 

adjustments for people with LD and/or autism. 

4. Expanded coverage of STOMP-STAMP programmes. STOMP roll-

out required as part of the Primary Care Network ‘Structured 

Medications Review and Optimisation’ service specification from 

April 2020.  

5. All providers of relevant services to meet requirements for: C[E]TRs; 

use of dynamic support registers; and reducing the use of restrictive 

practices and seclusion/long-term segregation.  

6. 100% LeDeR carried out within 6 months.  

7. All commissioned providers of local services to provide LD and 

autism awareness training for all staff, including in equality and 

diversity training as part of induction, and where appropriate to offer 

enhanced and specialist autism training.  

8. Expand seven-day specialist multidisciplinary community services 

and crisis care for people with LD and/or autism.  

 

Appendix 1 Learning Disabilities and Autism 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have e.g. 

system savings 
As with the overall Mental Health programme: 

 

The NW London Mental Health Programme Executive (representing commissioners 

and providers supports these changes which are in line with the ambitions of the NHS 

Long Term Plan 

As with the overall Mental Health programme: 

 

1. Reduction in presentations at A&E and inpatient admissions 

2. Earlier intervention and increased care in the community to prevent 

more costly inpatient care 

3. Improved service user experience  

4. Improved value for money  

5. Improved partnership working 

19 

P
age 54



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21(contract changes) 

1. With the move to PCNs, core community services (rapid 

response, district nursing, community beds) across NW London 

need to work to a harmonised set of operating standards including 

access and referral criteria, clinical conditions catered for to allow 

primary care partners to get a consistent level of support across 

the sector 

2. Community bed provision is extremely varied and the model for 

delivery will be reviewed with changes made across 20/21 

3. The Long Term plan outlines the key priorities for community 

services as improved responsiveness of health crisis response 

services to deliver the services within two hours of referral in line 

with NICE guidelines and delivery of reablement care within two 

days of referral to those patients who are judged to need it.  

1. Eligibility criteria for community services to be harmonised across NW London 

so that all community services operate to the same principles 

2. Implementation of a single set of operating standards for rapid response and 

district nursing services including times, routes and methods of access and 

who can refer to community services 

3. In-year implementation of a new model of care for community bed provision 

following a sector-wide review as agreed between providers and 

commissioners in-year 

4. Introduction of a consistent set of contract and performance indicators so all 

core community services are measured and monitored in the same way 

Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system 

savings 

1. Health and care partnership – lack of consistency of service 

delivery at present represents an opportunity to improve quality 

and experience of care, unwarranted variation and duplication as 

well as overhead costs. 

 

2. Work is in line with the Long Term Plan as it enables community 

services to better integrate with primary care and ICPs. Supports 

delivery of the ICS. 

 

3. Providers and commissioners are positive about reducing 

unwarranted variation between services which enables easier 

service and contract management 

 

1. All NW London patients having equitable access to community care and 

knowing that they can access care in their homes and community settings, 

not relying on hospital care 

 

2. Increased effectiveness and value for money of the community services 

model to prevent people going to hospital when they can be cared for at 

home or in their local community and getting them home from hospital 

quicker 

 

3. PCNs having a clear community services offer enabling them to focus 

energies into responding to the specific needs of their neighbourhood 

 

4. System partners (acute trusts, LAS) will be able to prevent admissions and 

get people home from hospital sooner through a consistent offer 

Out of hospital Care – Core community services 

20 

P
age 55



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. We are now entering a system of care delivered via PCNs and 

ICPs, as set out in the NHS Long-Term Plan, GP Forward 

View, and NW London’s agreed Primary Care Strategy 

 

2. The ICS will be expecting ICPs, PCNs and partners to deliver 

Health & Care Partnership priorities and ICP outcomes.  

 

3. Local communities will look to general practice as their first 

point of contact with health and care services, as well as 

support with navigation through the system via digital apps, 

social prescribing etc. Local authorities and the voluntary sector 

will  play an active and strengthened role in supporting families 

and individuals across our local communities, including for self-

care and social inclusion 

 

1. We are reviewing locally commissioned primary care enhanced services to ensure that 

they align with the nationally contracted service specifications and  are consistent and 

coherent across NWL they add commissioned value and not duplicate the national 

specifications 

 

2. Delivery of any changes needs to fit with the models of care for accessible, proactive and 

coordinated care as outlined in the NWL primary care strategy.  

 new forms of integrated care contract will emerge for both PCN Directed Enhanced 

Services and community services commissioning, alongside new ways of delivering 

community services and measuring primary care activity 

The new focus on population health management, via PCNs, can be delivered both 

through use of established NW London initiatives (eg, wrap-around primary care 

contracts, out of hospital service contracts, GP data packs, BI on Extended GP Access, 

WSIC, primary care quality dashboards etc), and via new algorithms identifying the ‘rising 

risk’ populations and new ways of managing patients with long-term conditions and 

multiple co-morbidities etc 

NW London’s emerging Primary Care Digital Strategy will implement online consultations 

in primary care (and potentially community services), with consequent impacts on access 

rates 

Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system savings 

Nationally supported – the PCN DES contract is nationally in place 

for the delivery of five service specifications  within the network 

DES from 20/21; structured medications review and optimisation, 

enhanced health in care homes, anticipatory care, personalised 

care and supporting early cancer diagnosis, with a further two from 

21/22; CVD diagnosis and prevention and health inequalities.  

These national specifications will be discussed and negotiated with 

the BMA  and ready  for publication in February. All providers will 

be expected to work together to deliver these services in an 

integrated way on the primary care network footprint 

 

In addition changes will include the introduction of the network 

dashboard and the impact and investment fund 

ICPs will be looking to PCNs to: reduce unwarranted variation; strengthen out-of-hospital 

readiness; manage some traditional hospital-based activity; work with partners to reduce 

inequalities in access and improve health and wellbeing.            This will build on the 

demand management programme already in place in 19/20 to manage unwarranted practice 

variation with particular emphasis on urgent access, GP referral rates and prescribing  

 

To increase the numbers of patients with long term conditions for whom the care planning 

and personalisation agenda is implemented 

Out of Hospital Care – Primary Care 

21 

P
age 56



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 
1. Use WSIC dashboards to risk assess patients for AF and hypertension to 

detect those that are undiagnosed 

 

2. To engage in active case finding based on predefined FH criteria, in 

primary care, to increase detection rates 

 

3. Ensure patients diagnosed with AF are treated with an appropriate 

anticoagulant through virtual clinics 

 

4. Ensure patients diagnosed with hypertension receive optimal treatment to 

control their BP 

 

5. Ensure early detection of heart failure through NT-pro BNP testing and 

access to echo in primary care 

 

6. Reduce unwarranted variation and improve consistency across clinical 

pathways for stroke and NSTEMI and ensure 7 day access 

 

7. Reduce the number of level 3 rehabilitation beds in NW London for stroke 

and reduce length of stay 

 

8. Increase scale of digital engagement with people with heart failure. 

Development and expansion of digital channels and tools.  

1. Additional tests required for detection of AF, FH, Hypertension and heart 

failure. 

2. Local FH services to collect and submit the agreed FH minimum data set for 

London 

 

3. Regular reviews of people with known AF and hypertension in primary care 

 

4. Review commissioning of stroke community rehabilitation  

 

5. Review commissioning of level 3 rehabilitation beds 

Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system 

savings 

The quality leadership group and the London Cardiac and Stroke Clinical 

Network support the changes which will improve patient care, better 

efficiencies across cardiovascular services, improve quality of life for 

patients and reduce hospital readmissions. 

 

1. Better patient care and experience- timely and appropriate treatment 

2. Reduce hospital readmissions 

3. Reduce LoS 

 

CVD Prevention cost saving £10 million  

10% reduction in level 3 bed days for stroke cost saving £2.7 million 

10% reduction in bed days for NSTEMI cost saving £439,802  

In addition there are potential cost savings for early detection of heart failure 

Out of Hospital – Better Care: Cardiovascular disease programme 

22 

P
age 57



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 
 
1. In North West London we have in seven out of eight CCGs community 

MSK interface services providing extended scope physiotherapy 

services including triage, diagnostic support, advanced treatments, 

shared decision-making and secondary care referral. 

 

2. The community MSK services will support PCNs to deliver their 

responsibilities under the network DES, providing the advanced 

practice physiotherapists to work across PCNs linking the PCNs and 

the interface services together 

 

3. Use WSIC dashboards to identify patients with MSK conditions 

 

4. MSK Clinical Network and Community MSK providers engage with 

PCNs in order to agree recruitment plan for advanced practice 

physiotherapists that meets the needs of PCNs and community 

providers to deliver the anticipatory care specification 

 

5. MSK Clinical Network and Community MSK providers engage with 

PCNs to roll out the Care Planning approach for MSK  
 

The model of MSK community interface services in NWL provides us an 

opportunity for community service providers to work together with PCNs to 

deliver the anticipatory care service along side triage and wider interface 

services  

The year of care pilot for MSK using the care planning approach has been 

undertaken in Hillingdon 

‘Versus Arthritis’ have developed a transferable approach to inviting people for 

CSP in which individual records are reviewed, people are invited to identify 

their own need for CSP, and non-responders followed up with indicative 

numbers.  

In addition to the tools, resources and information developed in the study, all 

practices needed additional tailored support in the form of  

 GP support for practice nurses  

 Support to modify IT systems  

 Facilitated problem solving  

 MSK/pain-specific training  

 

It is likely that Versus Arthritis will look to PCNs to scale up this approach 

Appendix 1: Out of Hospital – Better Care: Musculoskeletal 

23 

P
age 58



Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g. 

system savings 

Largest cause of morbidity in NWL  

  

NWL MSK pathways were reviewed in September 2018 to enhance 

evidence based quality care to patients with MSK conditions. 

 

Evidence based recommendations were made by a group of 

experts in line with current available evidence. The following 

recommendations were implemented.   

 

1. System intentions for 20/21 build on the work done in 18/19 

and 19/20: 

 

2. Triage: Adapt standard triage pathways  

 

3. Supporting self management: Patient education about 

evidence based treatment options, use of exercise referral 

scheme, social prescribing 

 

4. Share decision making: tools and resources available for 

staff, Pharmacological treatment for pain: medications 

review clinic by NMP with support from medical prescribers in 

the community 

1. Reduction in falls 

 

2. Improvement in enhanced care planning 

 

3. Reduction in associated disability and morbidity 

 

4. Reduction in non-elective admissions 

 

5. To optimise (reduce or increase or stop existing medications or start new 

medications). 

 

Out of Hospital – Better Care: Musculoskeletal (Cont’d) 

24 

P
age 59



Key Strategic changes for 2020/221 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. Rapid increase to the scale of digital engagement with people 

with Diabetes , development and expansion  of  best of type 

digital channels and tools 

2. Demonstrating the full benefit of insights based behavioural 

change initiative and the completion of a scalable social 

prescribing and healthcare marketing capability 

3. Increase/Improve  availability, accuracy and timeliness of 

integrated  data access across NW London  

4. Full Implementation of a NW London unified Outcomes based 

Diabetes  Services Specification 

5. Scaling and further development of the NWL REWIND Initiative 

6. Scaling and further development of the Know Diabetes Service, 

potentially moving out to formal procurement 

1. Outcomes Based Diabetes Specification embedded throughout NW London 

Diabetes related services as the basis/foundation of all  commissioned Diabetes 

service contracts 

2. Contractual adjustments to contracts reflecting role , reach and potential scale of 

digital interaction with patients 

3. Fully realised and operational Know Diabetes Service underpinning and by 

default supporting all non- face-to – face interactions with people with Diabetes.  

4. Contract with the One London Discovery Data Service to provide secured data 

access to the KDS  

5. Extension and expansion of REWIND including relationship with service 

providers in “risk-reward” gainshare relationships 

Appendix 1:  

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system savings 

1. The changes are broadly supported by patients, senior 

commissioners and providers across NW London.  The need to 

change is directed by the DoH and  NHSE. 

 

2. Drivers are: the annual rapidly increase prevalence of obesity 

related diabetes in the UK and NW London; the consequential 

increase in hospital admissions and extreme negative outcomes 

for those patients; along with an estimated cost of £600M per 

year in NW London 

1. Savings from £400K to £4M dependent on level and focus of investment 

2. Benefits around reducing variation an full deployment of outcomes based service 

specification in FY20/21 – tbc 

3. Reduction in annual activity growth in acute admissions with diabetes 

complications - tbc 

4. Reduction in annual cost growth for acute admissions with complications  - tbc 

5. New diabetes diagnoses are being reduced - the number of people with diabetes 

newly diagnosed each year has reduced in CWHHE CCGs for the first time 

since 2005. This coincides with the Out of Hospital contract which includes 

screening, annual review and offer of referral into the National Diabetes 

Prevention Programme (NDPP). Numbers of referrals into the NDPP from Brent, 

Harrow and Hillingdon are now reaching target. 

6. Hounslow CCG has improved the three treatment targets so effectively that they 

are seeing a reduction complications-related acute activity and cost. This is 

through focusing on the national Three Treatment Targets (3TTs) of blood 

pressure, HbA1c and cholesterol known to improve outcomes and reduce 

complications.  

Community: Better Care – NWL Diabetes Transformation Programme 

25 

P
age 60



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. Improve early and accurate diagnosis of respiratory 

conditions 

 

2. Reduce the morbidity and premature mortality associated 

with respiratory conditions 

 

3. Reduce the disease burden associated with vaccine-

preventable conditions – flu and pneumonia specifically – 

in at risk groups 

 

4. Increase scale of digital engagement with people with 

COPD and Asthma. Development and expansion of 

digital channels and tools.  

 

1. Implement virtual clinic reviews to identify people at risk of 

respiratory conditions 

 

2. Increase prescription of triple therapy 

 

3. Increase availability of, referral to, uptake and completion of 

pulmonary rehab 

 

4. Deliver targeted smoking cessation to people with respiratory 

conditions 

 

5. Increase uptake of flu and PPV vaccination in at risk groups 

Appendix 1:  

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system 

savings 

1. Respiratory is one of the priority clinical condition areas in 

the Long Term Plan 

 

2. The NW London Clinical Quality Reference Group has 

recommended improvement in respiratory care is a key 

focus for 20/21 

1. Improved quality of life for people with respiratory conditions 

 

2. Quicker access to care due to better identification and diagnosis of 

respiratory conditions 

 

3. Reduction in non-elective admissions to hospital for people with 

respiratory conditions 

Community: Better Care – Respiratory Disease  

26 

P
age 61



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21(contract changes) 
1. Improving the identification of and care planning for people in their last 

phase of life. 

 

2. Improving the delivery and experience of end of life care for patients 

and their families and carers 

 

3. Delivering more consistent specialist palliative care, focussed on 

community care settings. 

 

4. Reducing the number of people dying in hospital 

 

5. Increasing the number of people who have a CMC record, to enable 

more co-ordinated care.  

 

6. Increasing the number of people achieving preferred place of care in 

their last phase of life as this is can be easily identified through CMC. 

1. Increase the number of people in the last phase of life with a CMC care plan and 

on the GP palliative care register 

 

2. Increase the amount of clinicians accessing CMC care plans and adhering to 

patients’ wishes 

 

3. Implement a consistent specialist palliative care offer 

 

4. Shifting  specialist palliative care activity from inpatients to enhanced community 

services. 

 

5. Prevent NEL admissions through enhanced community services. 

 

6. Develop an integrated specialist palliative care pathway, alongside borough 

based ICPs. 

 

7. Develop a single contract for specialist palliative care that aligns with ICP 

principles. 

Appendix 1 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g 

system savings 
1. End of life care is highlighted within the Long Term Plan 

 

2. In 2019/20, the tri-borough and Brent CCGs are reviewing their 

specialist palliative care provision.  4 specialist hospice providers and 

1 community service provider are working in partnership to facilitate 

this service transformation work for 4 CCGS.  The changes are in pre-

consultation phase and are subject to engagement and consultation 

with public.  The aim would be to extend the work across 8CCGs. 

 

3. The NW London LPOL stakeholder group has endorsed these 

changes  

 

4. The NW London Care and Clinical Strategy references the LPoL 

programme.  

1. Better experience for patients, family and carers at the end of life 

 

2. More patients having their wishes at the end of their lives respected 

 

3. Fewer emergency admissions to hospital for people in the last months of life and 

therefore fewer LAS call out 

 

4. Reduction in the number of people dying in hospital 

 

5. Ensuring sustainability of independent hospice providers 

 

6. Improved ways of working between community and district nursing and specialist 

palliative care providers.  

 

Last phase of life (LPoL) 

27 

P
age 62



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. Implementation of tightened eligibility criteria 

 

2. Align PTS Contracts / Rate Cards to ensure comparable 

charging across sector 

1. Contract cost & volume changes 

 

2. Implement standardised common eligibility assessment clinical 

criteria across all acute trusts to reduce / manage demand. 

(Implemented at Imperial and LNWHT; to be implemented at 

ChelWest and Hillingdon) 

 

3. Produce further tightened eligibility criteria with clinical 

engagement at all trusts. 

 

4. Review cost per journey across all trusts, LNWHT is an outlier at 

£76 per journey compared to NWL average of £48. Review 

contractual options to reduce to the NWL average. 

 

5. Scope opportunity in community trusts CNWL / CLCH 

 

6. Scope opportunity in CCG commissioned patient transport 

 

Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g 

system savings 

System Recovery Board 

 

Savings Plan 

System savings worked up in Recovery Plan 

Patient Transport Services (PTS) 

28 

P
age 63



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. Go live April 2020 of new CWT standard of diagnosis within 28 

days 

 

2. Assuring routes to diagnosis and patient engagement; West 

London Access Policy 

 

3. LWBC: improved psych-oncology support across NWL 

 

 

 

1. Roll out of RDAC (Rapid Diagnostic) model 

a) For 2019/20 introduction of Trust specific interventions; LNWH Lumps & 

Bumps, CW sarcoma 

b) Sarcoma diagnostics; transfer of patients from Royal Marsden to West Mid 

(contract variation) 

 

2. Locally commissioned patient safety netting (CtheSigns) following pilot and 

evaluation in 2019/20 

 

3. Roll out of Stratified follow-up in Breast, colorectal and Prostate. 

 

4. Access Policy: referral back to primary care for 2WW non-responders 

 

5. Extended access for screening and direct contact to non-responders (currently 

2019/20 project with potential extension in 2020/21) 

 

Appendix 1 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system 

savings 
1. National cancer team 

 

2. RM Partners – cancer alliance 

 

3. Regional Cancer Commissioning Board 

 

4. Endorsement by NWL Cancer Board; during 2019/20 

 

1. Expansion of FIT in 2020/21 (High Risk pilot) potential to deliver 30-50% 

reduction in colonoscopy referrals 

 

2. Stratified follow-up; evaluation to follow, expected reduction in outpatient 

appointments 

 

3. Rapid diagnostics and patient safety netting; evaluation to follow, expected 

reduction in emergency presentations 

 

4. Psych-oncology support to reduce pathway delays and emergency 

presentations for patients during and after cancer treatment (Macmillan funded 

at LNWH for 2 years) 

Cancer 

29 

P
age 64



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. Reduce the costs of enteral feeds in NW London. 

 

2. Reduce the cost per patient for home oxygen in NW London. 

 

3. Reduce primary care expenditure by reducing prescribing of Over 

the Counter (OTC) medicines and items which should not routinely 

be prescribed in primary care in NW London. 

 

4. Maintain high uptake of prescribing of best value biosimilars. 

 

5. Strengthen collaboration across primary and secondary care in 

order to develop and adopt NW London prescribing guidance 

1. Better prescribing as well as alignment of the costs of enteral feeds across 

primary and secondary care through better procurement. 

 

2. Close the gap in variation of home oxygen costs whereby NW London CCGs 

currently pay a higher average cost per patient than some other CCGs. 

 

3. Implement any change to the CCGs’ policy on OTC medicines and items 

which should not routinely be prescribed in primary care . 

 

4. Continue high uptake of biosimilars across primary and secondary care 

where appropriate and available. 

 

5. Ensure that NW London prescribing  guidance (and any future guidance) is 

implemented across the system. Current examples include: Inhaler guide for 

Asthma & COPD and Diabetes guidance. 

 

Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system 

savings 

1. Reducing prescribing of Over the Counter medicines, items which 

should not routinely be prescribed in primary care and best value 

biosimilars are supported and recommended by NHS England. 

 

2. Development of NW London prescribing guidance is in 

collaboration with clinicians from primary and secondary care. 

 

1. Shared savings across the system 

Medicines Management 

30 

P
age 65



Key Strategic changes for 2020/21 System Intentions 2020/21 (contract changes) 

1. Collaboratively continue to explore new ways of working within the 

London system to deliver on the LTP, incorporating the 4 key 

principles Safety, patient-focus, managed financial risk, right 

commissioning infrastructure 

2. Formalise mental health provider collaboratives across London 

3. Implement next phase for Community Forensic Services 

4. Optimise Prison Health services to deliver recommendations within 

the LTP 

 

1. PbR contracts will not be offered to Trusts from 20/21 with discussions to be 

held with Trusts around the structure of the proposed contract offers 

2. QIPP to be jointly owned across the system based on transformation priorities 

3. Sustainable contract and payments mechanisms will be developed collectively 

at STP  

4. Exploring alternative collaborative governance and financial frameworks to 

deliver a sustainable framework across London 

 

Appendix 1: 

Who supports these changes and why What benefits are these changes expected to have  e.g system 

savings 

1. These system intentions have been agreed by the London 

Regional Executive Team, the intentions set out the priorities to be 

delivered within 2020/21 in addition to business as usual 

responsibilities.  

2. All national directors have responsibility for promoting delivery of 

specialised services in partnership with ICSs 

 

1. The approach detailed in the Specialised Commissioning System Intentions 

20/21 not only aims to meet the aspirations of the London Regional Executive 

team but also align with the Long Term Plan.  In addition, the changes 

indicated re: contracts will allow Specialised Services to be commissioned in a 

manner which makes best use of tax payer’s funding 

2. Greater ability to manage the whole budget to best effect, invest in other areas 

to enable population health management and balance system control totals 

3. Greater ability to invest specialised budget in preventative services, particularly 

where this will lead to reduced specialised activity 

4. Greater ability to invest specialised budget in step-down care, particularly 

where this will lead to reduced specialised length of stays 

5. Collective financial resources at a local level will enable greater decision 

making on the best use of limited resources 

 

Delegated Specialised Commissioning  

31 

P
age 66



Appendix 2: 

List of Abbreviations used  

32 

P
age 67



Appendix 3: 

NWL Systems Intentions 2020/21 Steering Group Membership 

33 

System representation   

CCG commissioning (chair) Jo Ohlson/ Huw Wilson Jones 

CCG QIPP leads Sarah Walker & David Thomas 

CCG Finance lead Paul Stefanowski 

Trust Dir Strategy  (Chel West) Dominic Conlin 

Trust contract lead (Imperial) Clare Robinson 

Trust Strategy lead (LNWHT) Ralph Elias 

CCG contract lead for non NWL Trusts Stephen Dixon 

ICP board reps CCG and Trust Tessa Sandal/Jason Antrobus/ (CCGs) James 

Benson (Trust) 

PCN development rep Sue Jeffers 

CCG MD or deputy Sheik Auladin 

S&T rep (long term plan) Elizabeth Rutherford 

Delegated specialised commissioning  David Hill/ Mark Smith 

Commissioning directorate support Leroy Cordle, Katie Horrell and Zaid Dowlut 

 

P
age 68



1 
 

 

Appendix B 
Hammersmith & Fulham CCG 
2020/21 Local Intentions 
 
 

NWL Key System Priorities 2020/21 System Intentions  Hammersmith and Fulham Local Context 

Unscheduled and Emergency Care 

Urgent and Emergency Care  
Appendix 1 (slide 15) 

Reduce variation in the way urgent treatment 
centres (UTCs) operate, with best practice 
implemented through adherence to national and 
London standards and clear/effective referral 
pathways. 

Charing Cross and Hammersmith Hospitals 
urgent care centres will change and become 
compliant with the nation guidance on urgent 
treatment centres 

Last Phase of Life 

Last phase of life (LPoL) 
Appendix 1 (slide 27) 

Develop an integrated specialist palliative care 
pathway, alongside borough based ICPs. 

Progress the transformation work following the 
review of specialist palliative care provision. 

Mental Health 

Mental Health  
Appendix 1 (slide 18) 

Core IAPT offer requirements (25% access, 50% 
recovery, 75% <6 weeks, 95% <18 weeks). 
 

The CCG will be looking at how the core IAPT 
offer can be delivered locally to meet national 
requirements  

Out of Hospital – Primary Care 

Out of Hospital MSK  
Appendix 1 (slide 23) 
 

The community MSK services will support PCNs 
to deliver their responsibilities under the 
network DES, providing the advanced practice 
physiotherapists to work across PCNs linking the 
PCNs and the interface services together. 

Recruitment and implementation of first contact 
physiotherapists to work across PCNs.  

Out of Hospital Care – Primary Care 
Appendix 1 (slide 21; point 3)  
Local communities will look to general practice as 
their first point of contact with health and care 
services, as well as support with navigation 

Delivery of any changes needs to fit with the 
models of care for accessible, proactive and 
coordinated care as outlined in the NWL primary 
care strategy. 
New forms of integrated care contract will 

Awarded Macmillan scheme for social prescribers 
who will bolster care navigation provided by 
social prescribers employed in additional roles in 
H&F.  

P
age 69



2 
 

through the system via digital apps, social 
prescribing etc. Local authorities and the 
voluntary sector will  play an active and 
strengthened role in supporting families and 
individuals across our local communities, 
including for self-care and social inclusion 

emerge for both PCN Directed Enhanced Services 
and community services commissioning, 
alongside new ways of delivering community 
services and measuring primary care activity. 
 

Out of Hospital Care – Primary Care 
Appendix 1 (slide 21) 
Nationally supported – the PCN DES contract is 
nationally in place for the delivery of five service 
specifications within the network DES from 
20/21; structured medications review and 
optimisation, enhanced health in care homes, 
anticipatory care, personalised care and 
supporting early cancer diagnosis, with a further 
two from 21/22; CVD diagnosis and prevention 
and health inequalities.  These national 
specifications will be discussed and negotiated 
with the BMA and ready for publication in 
February. All providers will be expected to work 
together to deliver these services in an 
integrated way on the primary care network 
footprint 

Delivery of any changes needs to fit with the 
models of care for accessible, proactive and 
coordinated care as outlined in the NWL primary 
care strategy.  
 
New forms of integrated care contract will 
emerge for both PCN Directed Enhanced Services 
and community services commissioning, 
alongside new ways of delivering community 
services and measuring primary care activity 
 

Practice Resilience support provided to GP 
federation to support practice and network 
resilience. 

Out of Hospital Care – Primary Care 
Appendix 1 (slide 21) 
Nationally supported – the PCN DES contract is 
nationally in place for the delivery of five service 
specifications within the network DES from 
20/21; CVD diagnosis and prevention and health 
inequalities.   

The new focus on population health 
management, via PCNs, can be delivered both 
through use of established NW London initiatives 
(e.g. wrap-around primary care contracts, out of 
hospital service contracts, GP data packs, BI on 
Extended GP Access, WSIC, primary care quality 
dashboards etc), and via new algorithms. 
identifying the ‘rising risk’ populations and new 
ways of managing patients with long-term 
conditions and multiple co-morbidities etc. 

Population health management element of the 
Enhanced Primary Care contract – sets Network 
targets to increase identification of chronic 
diseases and improved management. 

P
age 70



3 
 

 

Local communities will look to general practice as 
their first point of contact with health and care 
services, as well as support with navigation 
through the system via digital apps, social 
prescribing etc. Local authorities and the 
voluntary sector will  play an active and 
strengthened role in supporting families and 
individuals across our local communities, 
including for self-care and social inclusion 
 

Delivery of any changes needs to fit with the 
models of care for accessible, proactive and 
coordinated care as outlined in the NWL primary 
care strategy. 
 
New forms of integrated care contract will 
emerge for both PCN Directed Enhanced Services 
and community services commissioning, 
alongside new ways of delivering community 
services and measuring primary care activity. 

PMS Premium being reinvested in to Practices 
with areas currently being scoped such as 
dementia & Learning disabilities. 

Out of Hospital Care – Primary Care 
Appendix 1 (slide 21) 
Introduction of network dashboard 

The new focus on population health 
management, via PCNs, can be delivered both 
through use of established NW London initiatives 
(e.g. wrap-around primary care contracts, out of 
hospital service contracts, GP data packs, BI on 
Extended GP Access, WSIC, primary care quality 
dashboards etc), and via new algorithms 
identifying the ‘rising risk’ populations and new 
ways of managing patients with long-term 
conditions and multiple co-morbidities etc. 
 

Network dashboard has been introduced during 
practice variation visits to all practices. Started 
off the conversations between practices in PCNs 
to reduce practice variation. 

Community Care 

Community: Better Care – NWL Diabetes 
Transformation Programme 
Appendix 1 (slide 25) 
 

Scaling and further development of the NWL 
REWIND Initiative. 
 

H&F are early adopters of the NWL REWIND 
initiative. 

Children   

Children with complex needs 
Appendix 1 slide 12 

Working with partners to meet the health and 
social care needs of children with complex needs, 
including through transition to adulthood 

Working with the London Borough of 
Hammersmith and Fulham improvements will be 
made to the case management arrangements for 
children in joint commissioned placements, 
introduction of a priority oversight tracker and 

P
age 71



4 
 

improvements in the behavioural support service 
for children with complex needs 

 

P
age 72



H&F ICP Development Plan           Appendix C  

We do this by: 
• Designing, developing and delivering services with local people, patients and 

communities 
• Developing up-to-date, safe and efficient information and systems, so that knowledge 

about patients is available in the right place at the right time 
• Developing communication and information sharing systems for staff across 

organisations to improve coordination  
• Enabling staff to work in new ways and different care settings, leading to new 

development opportunities in order to deliver more joined up care 
 
 

Since an initial integrated care pilot scheme in 2011 health and care 
partners and local people working together to develop and sustain 
healthier and happier individuals and communities. 
 
 
Our key values are: 
• Coordinating and providing services around people’s needs 
• Enabling people to look after their own health and wellbeing and 

to make active and informed choices and decisions 
• Focusing on health and wellbeing outcomes at different stages of 

people’s lives 
• Taking a proactive and preventative approach to health and 

wellbeing  
• Fostering a culture of open and honest conversation and 

constructive challenge  
• Thinking and acting as a health and care system, not as individual 

organisations and  services 
• Sharing resources and assets in the most efficient way to sustain 

services for future generations  
 
 
 

Building on the long history of partnership working six organisations have 
formally come together through an Alliance Agreement covering the 
registered population of Hammersmith and Fulham. 
Formal partners: 
• Hammersmith and Fulham GP Federation 
• Central London Community Healthcare Trust 
• West London Trust 
• Imperial College Healthcare Trust 
• Chelsea and Westminster Foundation Trust 
• Hammersmith and Fulham CCG 
Associate partners: 
• London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
• Sobus (a community development agency) 
 

ICP & PCNs will 
developing 

outcomes together 

Local NHS organisations, the Local Authority and voluntary and community 
organisations have formed a partnership with the shared aim of working 
with people to improve: 
• Their health and quality of life 
• Their experiences of health and care services 
• The use of our collective resources and assets to ensure financial 

sustainability of the system 
• Staff wellbeing and fulfilment 
 

P
age 73



Governance Arrangements 

ICP Board 
Ensures alignment and shared decision making of all 
parties to the ICP and oversees the work established to 
deliver the ICP ambitions 
The Board is comprised of the individual partners board 
committees or executives delegated from each partner 
It also includes local authority, lay partner and voluntary 
sector representatives 
 

Initial 2019/20 Focus Areas 

Pooled Resources 
The partners have pooled resources to joint-fund the ICP manager and 
administrator posts as well as ‘back-filling’ GPs for workstream support 

ICP Management Group 
Oversees the operational and clinical workstreams and direct the project groups 
established for each of the workstreams 
Includes representation from clinical and managerial staff from each of the 
partners alongside the local authority, lay partners and voluntary sector 
representatives. 
 

•PCN Link Workers Recruited – September 2019 

•Borough Level Social Prescribing Architecture – 
September 2019 

•Macmillan Investment Application – October 2019 

Link Workers 

•Staff allocation by PCN mapped and agreed – August 
2019 

•Overarching operating model for the borough 
developed – September 2019 

•PCN Level milestones agreed – September 2019 

Integrated 
Community 

Teams  

•Business case for first PCN developed and approved – 
September 2019 

•Implementation of initial ‘priority’ pathways – March 
2020 

•Business case for on-going implementation and 
expansion to other PCNs – 2020/2021 

Integration of 
Acute Services 

•Wormholt Park Summer Fete and Live Well Fair – 
September 2019 

•Champions workshop to develop future plans – 
September / October 2019 

Integrated 
Care 

Champions 

P
age 74


	Agenda
	1 Minutes and Actions
	6 Community H&F CCG and ICHT Physiotherapy Services Update
	1. BACKGROUND
	1. BACKGROUND
	Item 5.1 Community  ICHT Physiotherapy HF Slides

	7 Business Information Update
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	8 CCG Commissioning Intentions 2020-2021
	1. North West London Approach
	1. North West London Approach
	2. Hammersmith and Fulham CCG Local Intentions
	2. Hammersmith and Fulham CCG Local Intentions
	3. Integrated Care
	3. Integrated Care
	Item 8.1 Appendix A  North West London System Intentions 2020-21
	Item 8.2 Appendix B HF CCG 2020 21 Local Intentions Template
	Item 8.3 Appendix C HF ICP Development Plan Summary Slides


